
COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ELECTRONIC PUBLIC INFORMATION PACKAGE FOR  
COUNCIL/ELECTIONS VIRTUAL MEETING 

THURSDAY, APRIL 15, 2021 – 8:30 – 12 NOON 



COUNCIL MEETING

Thursday, April 15,2021 6:30 a.m. - 1:00 p.m) 1

Virtual Meeting using Zoom Platform
(During COVID-1 9 Pandemic)

AGENDA - lnternal Elections (Public) 2

lnvited Guests

Richard Steinecke, Steinecke Macirua LeBlanc, Scrutineer for elections

Attendees

Council Members
Ms Jo-Ann Willson, Registrar and General Counsel

Mr. Joel Friedman, Deputy Registrar
Ms Beth Ann Kenny, Recording Secretary

OF Page
No.

ITEM Action
By

TimeAction
, Required

Priority
Level 3THE CoDE FOR

lN-CAMERA
SEsstoNs rF
OIRECTED BY
qoqN9l!

CRU- To ORDER Mizel Hieh 8:30

ru
Parliamentaria n5 : All , Mediam

members

2. Adoption of Agenda

1 Subject to Council's direction. Difficult to predict adjournment time.
2 lf you would like the complete background documentation relating to any item on the agenda, please speak

to Dr. Mizel, President and Ms Willson (subject to confidentiality provisions).
3 Subject to Council's direction.
a Approximate (subject to Council's direction).
s Council members to act as their own parliamentarian i.e., being familiar with and complying with the rules of

order rather than formal appointment of Parliamentarian.



Council Meeting Agenda (lnternal Elections) - April 15,2021 (Public) Page 2

SEcTloNs oF
THE CoDEFoR
IN-CAMERA
SEsstoNs rF
DIRECTEO BY
CouNctL

ByNo
Page ITEM

2.1 Conflict of Interest

3. By-laws/
Policies/Guidelines 6

By-laws
10 3.1 By-law 7: Elections (within

Council Hieh

Review Council Medium

Action
Required

Action Priority
Level 3

IIME"

Review/
Declare
any real or
perceived
conflicts
of interest
as agenda
item
reached

Council)
16 3.28y-law 9: Remuneration
20 3.3 By-law I l: Committee

Compo-qition
22 3.4By-law 12:

Appointment of Non-
Council Members

Policies/Guidelines
25 3.5 P-011: Conflict of Interest

for Council and Non-
Council Committee
Members

29
3T

3.6 r-001:
3.7 I-009: Procedures for

Attending
Events/Functions

32 3.8 I-010: Procedures for
Attending Educational
Sessions/Professional
Development Programs

5 Reviewed annually with amendments recommended to Council. Only Council has the authority to approve

amendments to regulations or by-laws.
7 Consider alternate public member on Executive Committee to lncrease public member representation to
s0/s0%.



Council Meeting Agenda (lnternal Elections) - April 15,2021 (Public) Page 3

SEcTIoNS OF
THE CooE FoR
IN-CAMERA
SEssroNs rF
OIRECTED BY

Page ITEM Action
Required

Action Priority
Level 3

Time a

ByNo.

3.9 I-011: Procedures for the

Peer and Practice
Assessment of Committee
Members 8

l-012: Reimbursement :

of Reasonable
Expenses and Per

Diems
I-013: Procedures for
Speaking Engagements
for Council Members

41 3.12 I-014; Procedures for
Striking and Dissolving
Sub-Committees

3.13 I-015: Zero Tolerance
of Abuse, Neglect, and

Harassment
4 I-016: Guidelines for

Observers at Council

49 3.15 I-017: Procurement of
Goods and/or Services

52 3.16 I-018: Minutes for
CCO

3.17 IG-001: Procedures for
Use of Email for CCO
Business

3.18 CCO Code of Conduct
9

57 3.19 ConfidentialitY

3.20 Rules of Order of
Council

63 3.21 Elected Member
l0

I please contact Dr. Bruce Walton to be peer assessed if you have not already been peer assessed recently
e All Council members are required to review, sign, and return the Code of Conduct, confidentiality

undertaking and nonharrassment policy. These documents were reviewed at the Orientation Session with

Richard Steinecke on April 5,2021. Please return the signed and witnessed documents to Ms Rose Bustria,

Administrative Assistant, asap if you have not already done so'
10 Elected members to please review, sign and return to Ms Bustria asap.



Council Meeting Agenda (lnternal Elections) - April 15,2021 (Public) Page 4

SEcIoNs oF
THE CoDEFoR
IN-CAMERA
SEsstoNs rF
OIRECTEO BY
CouNcrL

Page ITEM

3.22 Per Diem A Eipenses
Claim Statement

4. Best Practices re:
Committee Member
Gomposition

67 4.1Extract from CCO CPMF
Reporting Tool - March
3t?2021

73 4.2Extract from Cayton
Report dated December
2018 re: Competencies of
Council Members

Action Priority
Level 3

Council Medium

Action
Required

Ilme*
ByNo

75 4.3 CCO Intemal Elections -
Committee Conflicts (April
9,2021)

5. Council Nominations for
April2021

Appoint Willson Hieh
Scutin-
eer(s) and
Conduct
Elections

82

5.1

5.2

Memo to Council Members FYI
dated March 30,2027 re:
Expression of Interest in
CCO Committees
Committee Composition FYI
(April 9,2021) with
Council Members as of
April 14, 2021, and
Committees as of April 13,
2021 (before Council
meeting)

5.3 Memo from Nominations
Working Group dated April
9,202land Committee
Composition Nominations
Chart (April 15,2021)

Elect Council Hieh



Council Meeting A,genda (lnternal Elections) - April 15,2021 (Public) Page 5

SEcTloNs oF
THE CooE FoR
IN.CAMERA
SEsstoNs rF
OIRECTED BY
CouNcrL

Page ITEM Action
Required

Action
By

Priority
Level 3

Time a

No.

6. Non-Gouncil Gommittee Elect
Member Nominations for
April2O2'l11

.1 E-mail dated March 30,
202I to Noncouncil
committee members

Expr e s s ions of Intere s t fr om
Current Non-Council
Committee Members
6.2 Dr. Liz Anderson-Peacock
6.3 Dr. Daniela Arciero

Council Hish

117 ', 6.7 Dr. Murray T
119 6.8 Dr. Matt Tribe
123 6.9 Dr. Ian
127 6.10 Dr. Carolyn Wood

Expr e s s ions of Inter e s t fr om
other Members

132
138

144

6.11

6.t2
Dr. Robbie Berman
Dr. Katherine Tibor

6.13 List of Peer Assessors
as at April7,202l

6.14 Motion to Destroy any Motion Council Hieh
Election material
including ballots

11 Committee Chairs to include on agenda for their first meeting: development of work plan, review of terms

of reference, review of standards, policies and guidelines and scheduling of meeting dates for the balance of
the term (to April 2022). Generally, committees meet approximately every 4 - 6 weeks before Council

meetings to allow time for any recommendations to be prepared for Council's review. All meetings should

continue to address high priority matters only and should be conducted virtually pending further direction

from government in view of the global pandemic.



Council Meeting Agenda (lnternal Elections) - April 15,2021 (public) Page 6

THE CoDEFoR
IN-CAMERA
SEsstoNs rF
DIRECTED BY
CouNctL

Page ITEM
No.

Priority
Level 3

Time aOF Action r Action
Required By

7.t N.* Council Member
Orientation dated April 5, :

2021, facilitated by Richard
Steinecke

207 7.2 Responses/communications r

with Council members

146

AolouRtriluerur



ITEM 3.1

Bv-LAW 7: ElecnoNs (wrnrru Courucr)
Approved by Council: February 24, 200 l
Amended: September 24, 2009, September 17, 2015, June 19, 2019 (came into effect
September 13, 2019), September 4, 2020 (came into effect November 26, 2020)

7.1 An elected member of the Council is eligible

10

7.2

7.3

(a) to vote for elections within Council;

(b) for election to the position of president, vice-president or treasurer; and

(c) for election to the position of chair or member of a statutory or non-
statutory committee;

if the member is eligible for election to Council as of that date.

An appointed member of the Council is eligible:

(a) to vote for elections within Council;

(b) for election to the position of president, vice-president or treasurer; and

(c) for election to the position of chair or member of a statutory or non-
statutory committee.

The Council shall at the first meeting of Council following the general election, or
as soon thereafter as practicable, elect a president, vice-president and treasurer to
hold office until the first meeting of Council following the general election in the
subsequent year, and if an election is not so held, the president, vice-president and
treasurer for the preceding year shall continue in office until their successors are

elected.

The election of the president, vice-president and treasurer shall be by secret ballot
using generally accepted democratic procedures, and where more than two
council members are nominated, the nominee who receives the lowest number of
votes on each ballot shall be deleted from the nomination unless one nominee
receives a majority of the votes cast on the ballot, and this procedure shall be
followed until one nominee receives a majority of the votes cast.

Each member of Council has one vote with respect to each of the offices of
president, vice-president and treasurer.

7.4

7.5

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



ByJaw 7: Elections (within Council)

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

2

11
The president is the chief officer of CCO and the vice-president shall assist the
president in the discharge of hislher duties.

The president, vice-president or treasurer, may be removed from office by a two-
thirds vote of the Council at a special meeting called for that pu{pose, and the
Council may elect a new president, vice-president or treasurer from its members
to hold office for the remainder of the year.

The office of president, vice-president or treasurer becomes vacant if the holder of
the office dies, resigns or stops being a council member.

If the office of the president becomes vacant, the vice-president shall become the
president for the unexpired term of the office and the office of vice-president
thereby becomes vacant.

7.10 The Council shall fill any vacancy in the office of vice-president or treasurer
using the procedures in ByJaw 7.4 at a special meeting which the president shall
call for that purpose as soon as practicable after the vacancy occurs.

7.Ll The president of the Council shall be the chair of the Executive Committee.

7.12 The Council shall at the first meeting of Council following the general election, or
as soon thereafter as is practicable, elect the chairs and members of all statutory
and non-statutory committees of CCO. If such elections are not so held, the chairs
and members of the committees for the preceding year shall continue until their
successors are elected.

7.13 The election of chairs and members of statutory and non-statutory committees
shall be by secret ballot using generally accepted democratic procedures, and

where more council members are nominated than available positions, the nominee
who receives the lowest number of votes on each ballot shall be deleted from
nomination and this procedures shall be repeated until each nominee receives a

majority of the votes cast.

7.14 Following the election of a particular committee, a member of that committee
shall be elected as chair. Each member of Council has one vote with respect to the
position of chairs of all statutory and non-statutory committees.

7.15 The chair of any statutory or non-statutory committee may be filled by an elected
or appointed member of Council but not by a non-council member of CCO.

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



ByJaw 7: Elections (within Council) 3

12
7.16 A chair or committee member of a statutory or non-statutory committee may be

removed from office by a two-thirds vote of the Council, with or without cause, at

a special meeting called for that purpose, and the Council may elect a new chair to

hold the position for the remainder of the year.

7.17 The position of chair of a statutory or non-statutory committee becomes vacant if
the holder of the position dies, resigns or stops being a Council member.

7.18 If the position of chair or committee member of a statutory or non-statutory

committee becomes vacant,the Executive Committee shall appoint a chair or

committee member for the unexpired term of the position.

7.19 The duties and powers of the Council include

(a) administering the RHPA, Chiropractic Act and the regulations and by-laws

under those acts;

(b) reviewing the activities of statutory and non-statutory committees of the

Council and requiring committees to provide reports and information to

the Council;

(c) requiring statutory and non-statutory committees of the Council to do

anything that, in the opinion of the Council, is necessary or advisable to

carry out the intent of the fuHPA, Chiropractic Act, and the regulations

under those acts;

(d) finalizingand proposing amendments to regulations and by-laws under the

RHPA or the Chiropractic Act.

7.20 The duties and powers of the president of the Council include:

(a) facilitating the activities of CCO;

(b) chairing meetings of Council;

(c) chairing meetings of the Executive Committee;

(d) participating in the preparation of agendas of the meetings of Council and

meetings of the Executive Committee;

(e) supervising the arrangements for the annual meeting;

(0 taking all reasonable steps to ensure that directions of the Council and the

Executive Committee are implemented;

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



By-law 7: Elections (within Council) 4

13
(g) ensuring CCO is represented at all appropriate meetings;

(h) presenting an Executive report at each Council meeting;

(i) acting as a liaison between CCO and other professional organizations as
appropriate; and

CI) performing all acts and deeds pertaining to his/her office and such other
acts and deeds as may be decided by Council.

7.21 The president, while chairing a Council meeting or Executive Committee
meeting, votes only to break a tie.

7.22 The president of Council shall be eligible for election to a maximum of two
consecutive one-year terms in the presidency.

7.23 The duties and powers of the vice-president include:

(a) assuming the role of president in the absence of the president or when
appointed to do so by the president; and

(b) performing all acts and deeds pertaining to his/trer office and such other
acts and deeds as may be decided by Council.

7.24 The vice-president shall be eligible for election to a maximum of two consecutive
one-year terms in the vice-presidency.

7.25 The duties and powers of the treasurer of the Council include:

(a)

(b)

overseeing all matters relating to the financial affairs of CCO; and

performing all acts and deeds pertaining to his/her office and such other
acts and deeds as may be decided by Council.

7.26 The treasurer shall be eligible for election to a maximum of two consecutive one-
year terms in the office.

7.27 The duties and powers of the secretary of the Council include:

(a) keeping a record of matters that the Council has referred to the
committees;

(b) having custody and care of the records and documents of the Council;

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



ByJaw 7: Elections (within Council)

(c) giving or causing to be given notice of all council meetings and statutory

and non-statutory committees; and

(d) performing all acts and deeds pertaining to his/her office and such other

acts and deeds as may be decided by Council.

7.28 The agendas for the meetings of Council shall be prepared by the Executive

Committee in collaboration with the registrar and shall include a period during

which council members may raise for discussion topics relevant to the affairs of
CCO for possible inclusion in future agendas.

7.29 The registrar shall be the secretary of the Council'

7.30 The duties and powers of the chairs of each committee shall include:

(a) facilitating the activities of the committee and reporting to Council;

(b) chairing meetings of the committee;

(c) participating in the preparation of agendas of the meetings of the

committee;

(d) taking all reasonable steps to ensure that directions of the committee are

implemented;

(e) acting as a liaison between the Council or Executive Committee and the

committee;

(0 reporting to the Executive Committee upon reasonable request by the

Executive;

(g) reporting in writing to the council at the meetings of council on the

activities of the committee for the preceding year;

(h) preparing a work plan for the subsequent year, which includes all
budgetary requirements for the committee, by November 1 of each and

every year, or by such other time as directed by Council;

(D ensuring the activities of the committee are conducted in a fiscally
responsible manner within approved budgetary restraints; and

performing all acts and deeds pertaining to his/her office and such other

acts and deeds as may be decided by Council.

5

14

c)

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



By-law 7: Elections (within Council)

7.31 The chair of every statutory and non-statutory committee shall be eligible for
election to a maximum of two consecutive one-year terms.

6

15

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



ITEM 3.2

Bv-lew 9: ReuuNERAnoN
Approved by Council: February 24, 2001
Amended: September 24, 2009, June 24, 2011, September 17, 2015, September 4, 2020
(came into effect November 26, 2020)

9.t The per diems and reasonable expenses paid by CCO to committee members are

intended to partially off-set the cost of a contribution to the profession of
chiropractic rather than to pay for services rendered or to compensate for lost
income or the opportunity to earn income. "Committee members" means elected
council members and non-council members of statutory and non-statutory
committees.

9.2 Subject to other direction by Council, the president of the Council will receive an

annual honorarium of thirty-five thousand dollars ($35,000) payable no later than
one year after the date the president takes office. In the event the president's
tenure is less than one year, the president will receive a pro-rated amount
determined by the length of the president's tenure.

9.3 Committee members are entitled to the remuneration outlined in the chart below:

Description Allowable Glaim
effective September 24, 2009

Committee members; full-day
meeting or hearing; meeting in
excess of three hours

Attendance per diem
Preparation per diem

Chairs:
Others:

$4oo

$350
$200

2 Committee members; meeting or
hearing lasting less than three
hours

One-half attendance per diem
One-half preparation per diem

Chairs:
Others:

$200

$175
$100

3 Conference call meetings:
applicable full or one-half day
attendance and preparation per
diem and reasonable expenses
(e.9., long distance charges, as
outlined in CCO lnternal Policy l-
012)

16

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



By-law 9: Remuneration

17

9.4 By-law 9.3, as it relates to payment of per diems and reasonable expenses, applies
to Discipline Committee and Fitness to Practise Committee members who
perform duties, such as conducting pre-hearing conferences or hearing pre-
hearing motions.

9.5 A member who is the principal author of a Discipline, Inquiries, Complaints and

Reports or Fitness to Practise Committee decision may charge one attendance per
diem for at least three accumulated hours of work to a maximum of three per
diems, but no preparation per diem, travel per diem or meal expenses.

9.6 The following conditions apply to the remuneration entitlement of committee
members:

Per Diems and Reasonable Expenses

Committee members may claim for a full day attendance per diem when a
meeting or hearing is in excess of three hours.

Committee members may claim for a half day attendance per diem when a
meeting or hearing is in excess of one hour but is not in excess of three hours.

In extenuating circumstances, and subject to the approval of the Executive
Committee, two attendance per diems may be claimed for one calendar day.
Extenuating circumstances include committee members being called to an

emergency meeting with less than 48 hours notice which requires them to forfeit
office time.

2

Description Allowable Claim
effective September 24, 2009

4 Travel time of more than three
hours (round trip) for all
committee members

Travel per diem $300

5 Travel time of more than one hour
and less than three hours (round
trip) for all committee members

One-half travel per diem: $150

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



By-law 9: Remuneration 3

18
Attendance for Full Duration of Scheduled Meeting

In order to be eligible for the appropriate attendance per diem, a council or
committee shall attend the full duration of the scheduled meeting. If extenuating
circumstances apply which necessitate leaving a meeting earlier than the
scheduled end time, the council or committee member shall communicate this in
writing to the Chair of the meeting.

Reasonable expenses, as outlined in CCO Internal Policy l-012, and attendance
per diems may be claimed to attend conferences, educational sessions, speaking
engagements or other functions directly related to CCO business provided prior
approval is obtained from the Executive Committee.

Gancellation of Meetings/Hearings

A one-half attendance per diem may be claimed in the event of the cancellation or
adjoumment of an official meeting without one week's advance notice being
given, subject to the discretion of the Executive Committee:

(a) A fuIl attendance per diem but no travel per diem or meal expenses may
be claimed in the event of the cancellation or adjournment of a Discipline
or Fitness to Practise hearing, without four weeks advance notice being
given, provided that the commiffee member was required, as a result of the
scheduled hearing, to make alternate office arrangements in order to be

available for the hearing. Unless the committee member ordinarily has

office time on Saturdays or Sundays, no per diem will be permitted for the
cancellation or adjournment of hearings scheduled on Saturdays or
Sundays.

(b) A full attendance per diem including a travel per diem and meal expenses

may be claimed in the event a Discipline or Fitness to Practise Committee
member attends what he/she anticipates to be a fulIday hearing even if the

hearing is disposed of prior to the expiration of three hours, provided the
committee member was required as a result of the scheduled hearing to
make alternate office alrangements in order to be available for a full day
hearing.

Gonference Calls

Committees are encouraged to conduct meetings wherever possible and
practicable by conference call; committee members will receive the
appropriate attendance and preparation per diems and reasonable expenses
for such meetings and payment of long-distance charges but will not
receive a travel per diem.

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



ByJaw 9: Remuneration

Preparation Time

Preparation time may only be claimed if preparation is in fact required for the
meeting/event/hearing being attended.

4

19

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



ITEM 3.3

Bv-lnw 11 : GowrMrrrEE GotvrposrroN
Approved by Council: February 24, 200 l
Amended: September 24, 2009, November 30, 2012, September 17, 2015, June 19, 2019
(came into ffict September 13, 2019), August 14, 2020 (came into ffict September 4,

2020)

1 1. I The Executive Committee, inclusive of the president, vice-president and treasurer,
shall be composed of the following:

(a) Four members of Council who are members of CCO;

(b) Three members of Council who are appointed by the Lieutenant Governor
in Council;

ll.2 The president of the Council shall be the chair of the Executive Committee.

11.3 The Registration Committee shall be composed of:

(a) two members of Council who are members of CCO; and

(b) two members of Councils appointed to the Council by the Lieutenant
Governor in Council.

ll.4 The Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee shall be composed ofi

20

(a)

(b)

two members of Council who are members of CCO;

two members of Council appointed to Council by the Lieutenant Governor
in Council; and

(c) one member of CCO who is not a member of Council.

11.5 The Discipline Committee shall be composed of:

(a) every member of Council; and

(b) up to three members of CCO who are not members of Council.

ll.6 The Fitness to Practise Committee shall be composed of every member of
Council.

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



By-law 11: Committee Composition

21
Il.7 The Quality Assurance Committee shall be composed of:

(a) two members of Council who are member of CCO;

(b) two members of Council appointed to Council by the Lieutenant Governor
in Council; and

(c) one member of CCO who is not a member of Council.

11.8 The Patient Relations Committee shall be composed of:

(a) one member of Council who is a members of CCO;

(b) two members of Council appointed to Council by the Lieutenant Governor
in Council; and

(c) two members of CCO who are not members of Council

11.9 Council may, by resolution, establish non-statutory commiffees. For each non-
statutory committee, Council shall speciff in the resolution the duties and
responsibilities of the committee, its composition and its termination date or
event.

11.10 A committee is still properly constituted if it has vacancies so long as a quorum
remains. Unless otherwise specified by the Code, three members of a committee
constifute quorum.

11.1I By-laws 8.18 to 8.21 (electronic meetings) applies to committee meetings.

11.12 ln By-law 11, despite the use of a definite number of committee members in any
category, Council may appoint additional commiffee members in any category,
except for the Executive Committee or the Discipline Committee.

1 I .13 In By-law 1 l, despite the use of a definite number of committee members in any
category, Council may appoint alterative committee members in any category. An
alternative committee member may attend meetings and participate in discussions
but shall not vote unless a full committee member in the same category as the
alternative is unable to participate in the matter, including if he/she has a conflict
of interest.

2

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



ITEM 3.4

BY.LAW 12: APPOINTMENT OF NON.GOUNCIL METilEENS

22

Approved by Council: February 24, 200 I
Amended: September 24, 2009, September 17, 2015, February 23, 2016,

February 28, 2017, June 19, 2019 (came into effect September 13, 2019), September 4,

2020 (cam e into effect November 26, 2020)

I2.l This by-law applies with respect to the appointment of members who are not

members of the Council to a committee of CCO.

12.2 The Council shall appoint members to committees in the numbers prescribed by
By-law 11.

12.3 The Council shall make the appointments at the first regular council meeting after

each regular council election or as soon thereafter as is practicable.

12.4 The Council may make appointments from time to time to fill any vacancy

created by the disqualification, death or resignation of a member appointed under

this by-law.

12.5 In making the appointmentso the Council shall take into account location and type

of practice, experience, professional qualifications and skills, and other
qualifications and characteristics of members to complement the attributes of
members of the committees who are members of Council.

12^6 The term of office of a committee member who is not a member of the Council is

approximately one year starting on the date the appointment is made, except

where an appointment is made to fill avacancy in which the person appointed

shall complete the term of the previous appointee.

I2.7 A non-council member may only serve on CCO committees for nine consecutive

years, whether the time is served as a council member or as a non council

member.

12.8 A non-council member who has served on CCO committee (s) for nine

consecutive years is not eligible to be re-appointed to any CCO committee until at

least three years have passed since the member last served on a CCO Committee.

l2.g A member is eligible for appointment to a committee if, on the date of the

appointment:

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



By-law 12: Appointment of Non-Council Members

is the subject of any disciplinary or incapacity proceeding;

is found to have committed an act of professional misconduct or is found
to be incompetent by a panel of the Discipline Committee;

2

23
(a) The member has hislher primary practice of chiropractic located in

Ontario, or if the member is not engaged in the practice of chiropractic,
has his/her primary rcsidenue louated in Ontario;

(b) the member is not in default of payment of any fees prescribed by by-law
or any fine or order for costs to CCO imposed by a CCO committee or
court of law;

(c) the member is not in default in completing and returning any form
required by CCO;

(d) the member is not subject of any disciplinary or incapacity proceeding;

(e) a finding of professional misconduct, incompetence or incapacity has not
been made against the member in the preceding three years;

(e.1) the member has not resigned from a position on Council, before
completing their term, within the last three years and four months

(f) the member is not an employee, officer or director of any professional
chiropractic association such that a real or apparent conflict of interest
may arise, including but not limited to being an employee, officer or
director of the OCA, CCA, CCPA, AFC, CCEB, CSCE or the
Accreditation Standards and Policies Committee or the CCEC of the FCC.

(g) the member is not an officer, director or administrator of any chiropractic
educational institution, including but not limited to CMCC or UeTR;

(h) the member has not been disqualified from the Council or a committee of
the Council in the previous three years;

(i) the member is not a member of council or of a committee of the college
of any other health profession; and

c) the member has not been a member of cco's staff at any time within the
preceding three years.

12.10 The Council shall disqualifu a member appointed to a committee from sitting on
the committee if the member:

(a)

(b)

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



By-law 12: Appointment of Non-Council Members

24
(c) is found to be an incapacitated member by a panel of the Fitness to

Practice Committee;

(d) fails to attend two consecutive meetings of the committee or of a
subcommittee in which he/she is a member, without reasonable cause in
the opinion of Council;

(e) fails to attend a hearing or review of a panel for which he/she has been
selected; without reasonable cause in the opinion of the Council;

(0 becomes an employee, officer or director of any professional chiropractic
association such that arcal or apparent conflict of interest may arise,
including but not limited to being an employee, officer or director of the
OCA, CCA, CCPA, AFC, CCEB, CSCE or the Accreditation Standards
and Policies Committee or the CCEC of the FCC;

(g) becomes an officer, director or administrator of any chiropractic
educational institution, including but not limited to CMCC or UQTR;

(h) becomes a member of the Council of CCO or a committee of any other
health profession;

breaches the conflict of interest provision(s) for members of Council and
committees, in the opinion of the Council after giving notice to the
member of the concern and giving the member an opportunity to respond
to the concern;

c) fails to discharge properly or honestly any office to which he/she has been
appointed or engages in conduct unbecoming of a committee member, in
the opinion of the Council after giving notice to the member of the
concern and giving the member an opportunity to respond to the concern,;

(k) becomes in default of payment of any fees prescribed by by-law or any
fine or order for costs imposed by the Discipline Committee;

0) becomes in default of completing and returning any form required by
CCO; or

l2.ll A non-council committee member shall resign from a committee prior to applying
for any CCO staff position.

12J2 A member who is disqualified under this by-law from sitting on a committee
ceases to be a member of the committee.

3

(i)

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario









































































Undertaking to Maintain Confidentiality
March 30, 2021

60
Offences

40. (1) Every person who contravenes subsection2T (1) or 30 (1) is guilty of an offence

and on conviction is liable,
(a) for a first offence, to a fine of not more than $25,000, or to imprisonment for a term of

not more than one year, or both; and

(b) for a second or subsequent offence, to a fine ofnot more than $50,000, or to

imprisonment for a term of not more than one year, or both. 2007, c. 10, Sched. M, s. 12.

Same
(2) Every individual who contravenes section 31,32 or 33 or subsection 34 (2),34'I (2) ot

36 (1) is guilty of an offence and on conviction is liable to a fine of not more than $25,000 for a

first offence and not more than $50,000 for a second or subsequent offence. 2007, c. 10, Sched.

M, s. 12.

Same
(3) Every corporation that contravenes section 31,32 or 33 or subsection 34 (l),34.1 (1)

or 36 (1) is guilty of an offence and on conviction is liable to a fine of not more than $50,000 for
a first offence and not more than $200,000 for a second or subsequent offence. 2007, c' 10,

Sched. M, s. 12.

4



|TEM 3.20

Rules of Order of the Council of the
Gollege of Chiropractors of Ontario

Approved by Council: September 20,2014
Amended: June 17,2020

61

1

2

3

4

ln this Schedule, "Council Member" means a Member of the Council of the CCO

Each agenda topic may be introduced briefly by the person or committee
representative raising it. Council Members may ask questions for clarification.
However, a Council Member shall make a motion and another Council Member
shall second the motion before it can be debated.

When any Council Member wishes to speak, they shall so indicate by raising
their hand. When speaking the Council Member shall address the presiding
officer and confine themselves to the matter under discussion.

Staff persons and consultants with expertise in a matter may be permitted by the
presiding officer to provide information or answer specific questions about the
matter.

5. Observers at a Council meeting shall not speak to a matter that is under debate

A Council Member shall not speak again on the debate of a matter until every
other Council Member of Council who wishes to speak to it has been given an
opportunity to do so. An exception is that the person introducing the matter or a
staff person or consultant may answer questions about the matter. Council
Members shall not speak to a matter more than twice without the permission of
the presiding officer.

No Council Member may speak longer than five minutes upon any motion except
with the permission of the Council.

When a motion is under debate, no other motion can be made except to amend
it, to postpone it, to put the motion to a vote, to adjourn the debate or the Council
meeting or to refer the motion to a committee.

A motion to amend the motion then under debate shall be disposed of first. Only
one motion to amend the motion under debate can be made at a time.

10. When it appears to the presiding officer that the debate on a matter has
concluded, that Council has passed a motion to vote on the motion or that the
time allocated to the debate of the matter has concluded, the presiding officer
shall put the motion to a vote.

When a matter is being voted on, no Council Member shall enter or leave the
Council room, and no further debate is permitted.

6.

7

8

o

11



Rules of Order of Council

12

13

14

15

62
No Council Member shall be present in the room, participate in a debate or vote
upon any motion in which they have a conflict of interest, and the vote of any
Council Member so interested shall be disallowed.

Any motion decided by the Council shall not be re-introduced during the same
session except by a twothirds vote of the Council then present.

Whenever the presiding officer is of the opinion that a motion offered to the
Council is contrary to these rules or the by-laws, the presiding officer shall rule
the motion out of order and give reasons for doing so.

The presiding officer shall preserve order and decorum, and shall decide
questions of order, subject to an appeal to the Council without debate.

16. The above rules may be relaxed by the presiding officer if it appears that greater
informality is beneficial in the particular circumstances unless the Council
requires strict adherence.

17 Council Members shall not discuss a matter with observers while it is being
debated.

18 Council Members shall turn off their electronic devices during Council meetings
and, except during a break in the meeting, shall not use their electronic devices.
Computers shall only be used during Council meetings to review materials
related to the matter under debate (e.9., electronic copies of background
documents) and to make personal notes of the debate. The presiding officer may
make reasonable exceptions (e.9., if a Council Member is awaiting an important
message on an urgent matter).

19. Council Members shall be silent while others are speaking

ln all cases not provided for in these rules or the by-laws, the current edition of
Robert's Rules of Order shall be followed so far as they may be applicable and
consistent with these rules.

20

2



63ITEM 3.21

UruoeRrRKtNG ro rHE CCO RectsrnRR FRoM Elecreo MeMeens or CCO

Couttclt-
College of Chiropractors of Ontario (CCO)

Version Date: MaY 1, 2019
Amended: 27 2019

Note to elected members of CCO Council: Initial the box/boxes that apply. Leave blank box/boxes that do not apply

and provide an explanation on a separate pag,e.

l, _, elected member of CGO Council in District 

-, 

undertake to the

Registrar as follows:

1

2.

(a) My primary practice of chiropractic is located in the electoral district for

which I was nominated.

- oR-
(b) I am not engaged in the practice of chiropractic and my primary residence is

located in the electoral district for which I was nominated'

OR

I am not:
o in default of payments of any fees prescribed by by-law or any fine or order for costs to

CCO imposed by a CCO committee or court of law.

r in default in completing and returning any form required by CCO'

o the subject of a disciplinary or incapacity proceeding.

. an 
"*p1oy"", 

officer or director ofany professional chiropractic association such that a

real oi apparent conflict of interest may arise, including but not limited to being an

employee, officer or director of the AFC, OCA, CCA, CCPA, CCEB, CSCE or the

Councit on Chiropractic Education (Canada) of the FCC1'

. anofficer, director, or administrator of any chiropractic educational institution, including

but not limited to, CMCC and UQTR, such that a real or apparent conflict of interest

may arise.
o a member of the Council or of a committee of the college of any other health profession.

If applicable, I have attached to this undertaking a copy of all letters of resignation

from my position as an employee, officer or director of any professional chiropractic

associaiion or an officer, director or administrator of any chiropractic educational institution

such that a real or apparent conflict of interest may arise.

Ifapplicable, I have taken all reasonable and necessary steps to ensure I am not

."nL"t"O in any documents or on any websites as an employee, officer or director of any

professional chiropractic association or an officer, director or administrator of any

fhiropractic educational institution such that a real or apparent conflict of interest may arise.

r The effective date on which the candidate must not be an employee, officer or director of any professional

chiropractic association, or an officer, director or administrator of any chiropractic educational institution such that a

real or apparent conflici of interest may arise, is the closing date of nominations and any time up to and including

the date of the election (i.e., before the election results are known). Copies of relevant letters of resignation must be

filed with CCO, along with the candidate's nomination papers. The candidate should take all reasonable and

necessary steps to ensure he/she is not reflected in any documents or on any websites as an employee, officer.or

director of any professional chiropractic association, or an officer, director or administrator of any chiropractic

educational institution, such that a real or apparent conflict of interest may arise.

J

4.



Undertaking to the CCO Registrar from Elected Members of Council, Version Date: May 1,2019 2

I undertake to maintain all confidentiality within the election process, including but
not limited to, maintaining confidentiality with respect to which members voted or did not
vote and which members may have submitted spoiled ballots.

5

6. I have not:
. been disqualified from the Council or a committee of the Council in the previous three

years.
r served on Council for nine consecutive years without a full three-year term passing since

I last served on Council.
e been a momber of the stoff of the College at ony timc within thc prcccding thrcc ycars.

A finding of professional misconduct, incompetence or incapacity has not been made against
me in the preceding three years.

8. I confirm I have reviewed my active personal and business communications, including those
on social media, and there is no current content that could embarrass CCO or give cause to
consider that I am unable or unwilling to comply with CCO's mission, vision, values
strategic objectives and by-laws, and the duty to be fair and impartial in all considerations.

I undertake to:
o review and comply with CCO's Code of Conduct, CCO Internal Policy I-015: Policy to

Avoid Abuse, Neglect and Harassment, CCO's mission, vision, values and strategic
objectives, and standards ofpractice, policies and guidelines,

o review CCO's orientation material and attend any relevant training workshop,
o participate in CCO's Peer and Practice Assessment Program within six months of

my election (if I have not already been peer assessed by that time), and
o participate as a member of a discipline panel or fitness to practice panel if selected by the

Chair of the Discipline or Fitness to Practise Committee.

10. I confirm that I have access to and agree to use the following confidential e-mail address for
any and all CCO matters:

1 1. I confirm all the information in this undertaking is accurate, complete and true.

T2 I further undertake to advise the Registrar forthwith of any change in the above-noted
statements.

13 I understand it is an act of professional misconduct to fail to comply with an undertaking
to the Registrar.

64

7

9

r

Elected Member's Name Elected Member's Signature Date

\Mtness'Name \y'Vitness' Signature Date



-1- |TEM 3.2.2

Golleee or GnrnopRAcroRs or OrurARto
Pen Drem & Experuses Gurlr Srereuerur Fon

Elecreo Gouttcr- eruo Nott-Gouttcll MEMBERS1'2
65

Name:

Meeting Attended

Date of Meeting:

Duration of your attendance at Meeting: From:

Location:

AM/PM to AM/PM

PER DIEM

Per Diem (Attendance):
r Full Day (more than three hours): $400
. Half Day (less than three hours): $200

Per Diem (Preparation, if applicable):
. Full Day (chairs): $350
o Full Day (other committee members): $200
o Half Day (chairs): $175
. Half Day (other committee members): $100

Per Diem (Travel, if applicable):
r Full (travel time of more than three hours round trip): $300
. Half (travel time of more than one hour and less than

three hours round trip): $150

lf claiming travel per diem, please indicate your address of
departure preceeding the meeting, and address of arrival
following the meeting.

Address of Departure

Address of Arrival:

Total Per Diem (Taxable Amount):

I Please refer to ByJaw 9: Remuneration and Internal Policy I-012: Reimbursement of Reasonable Expenses and Per Diem
for the details conceming allowable claim and expenses and the appropriate procedures and contact CCO in advance if you
have any questions.
2 Committee members are required to submit to CCO a completed Meeting Per Diem and Expenses Claim Statement no later
than 90 days after the meeting/event/hearing to which the claim i3 related. If a claim for per diem or expenses is denied, a
committee member may make written submissions to the registrar, within 30 days of the denial of the claim, outlining the
reasons why he/she is entitled to the claim for per diem or reasonable expenses. All written appeals for per diem or expense
claims received by the registrar shall be referred to the Executive Committee for review and decision.
Vercion Date: Novemher 29, 2018



a-z-

REASONABLE EXPENSES RELATING TO CCO BUSINESS
(Original, detailed receipts must be attached. Credit card vouchers are not sufficient)

Travel- Car: KM x $0.50/KM =

Taxi Fare/Parking:

Air/Transportation Fare:

Hotel/Accommodation:
. if travel exceeds 40 km to a meeting/event/hearing
. maximum of $350 per night, including parking at hotel and taxes

Meal Expenses
(maximum amount per day when meal is not provided by CCO):

Breakfast ($2S;:

Lunch ($3S;:

Dinner ($50):

Miscellaneous:

Total Expenses (Non-taxable Amount):

Total Glaim (Per Diem plus expenses):

t hereby certify the above to be an accurate statement of per diems and expenses.

Signed Date

Registrar's Approval:

ldentifrT any exten uating circu mstances

66

Version Date: November 29, 2018



ITEM 4.1 67
College of Chiropractors of Ontario
LOrdre des Chiropraticiens de l'Ontario CCO CPMF Reporting Tool - March 31, 2021

Pnnr 1.: MrRsunrvrrur DovtRtltls

processes, and verifiable results that demonstrate the achievement of relevant standards and encourages Colleges to not only to identify whether they are working on, or are

planning to implement, the missing component if the response is "No", but also to provide information on improvement plans or improvement activities underway if the

response is "Yes" or "PartiallY".

KD

The College fulfills this requirement: Yes il Partially X No R

The competency/suitability criteria are public: Yes X No I
lf yes, please insert link lo where th€y rcn be faun(l' tf aat al€cse list criteri0:

Duration of orientation training:

Format of orientation training (e.g., in-person, online, with facilitator, testing knowledge

at the end):

lnsert a link to website if training topics are public OR list orientation training topics:

CCO identifies competencies and suitability for candidates for election to Council and non-

Council committee members in the following documents and using the processes and

procedures outlined below. Orientation training takes place after members are elected to

council; however, cco is currently reviewing the practices of other colleges for pre-

election orientation. :

a. Professional members are eligible to

stand for election to Council only after:

i. meeting pre-defined competency /
suitability criteria, and

ii. attending an orientation training

about the College's mandate and

expectations pertaining to the

member's role and responsibilities.

1.1 Where possible, Council and

Statutory Committee members

demonstrate that they have the

knowledge, skills, and

commitment prior to becoming a

member of Council or a

Statutory Committee.

Ontario Ministry of Health 11



KD
College of Chiropractors of Ontario
fordre des Chiropraticiens de lontario

68
CCO CPMF Reporting Tool - March 3!,2OZL

a 2020 Notice of Election - the Notice of Election identifies the criteria for being
eligible for election to council and the factors and conflicts of interest that would
preclude a member from being eligible for election to council. ln the 2021 Notice
of Election. CCO has identified various competencies that candidates are
encouraged to include in their election material, including:
knowledge, expertise, skills and attributes related to: chiropractic care of patients,
including patients from different backgrounds, protection ofthe public interest,
serving on boards in an oversight role, interpersmal and communication skills,
previous roles and experience in business, organizational planning, human
resources, health and safety, policy developmen! risk management, education and
research, financial or accounting, information technology and any other roles
relevant to cco's mandate and functions. This document is available to the public.

cco Bv-law 6 and Bv-law 12 identify the competencies and criteria for council and
Committee members, which are also included in the Notice of Election, These
documents are available to the public. ln accordance with By-law 12: Appointment
of Non-Council Members, Council shall take into account location of practice,
experience, professional qualification and skills, and other qualifications and
attributes of members of the committees who are members of Council.

Orientation Training for New Council Members

a As part of the candidate undertakine (available to the public), a candidate for
elections is required to undertake that they will attend and participate any and all
Council orientation sessions conducted by CCO. ln prior years, an orientation and
training session is always conducted at the first council meeting that a new council
member attends, which addresses topics such as duties and objects of the College,
the role of regulating the profession in the public interest, the roles and
responsibilities of CCO committees, various duties of Council members, including
the duty of confidentiality and declarations of conflicts of interest. This session is
led by outside legal counsel and involves various scenarios and role-playing
exercises. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, council traini ng that typically takes

Ontario Ministry of Health 72



KD
College of Chimpractors ol Ontario
[Ordre des Chiroprsticiens de lontario

69
CCO CPMF Reporting Tool - March 31, 2021

place in April 2020 was delayed; however, multiple training sessions were

conducted for new and current council members during the year. These included

training sessions on topics such as: an introduction to governance, effective chair

training (basic and advanced training), use oftechnologyfor meetings and internal
elections, council performance measurement framework and evaluation training.
Four orientation sessions were conducted in total in 2020 and two education

sessions on meeting and internal election technology were conducted in 2020, all

through remote presentations and participation. These took place on the following
dates:

o Technology training for virtual meetings and online voting in internal
elections session 1 - led by CCO staff: June t2,2O2O

o Technology training for virtual meetings and online voting in internal

elections session 2 - led by CCO staff: June 15, 2020

o Governance 101 - led by Registrar and General Counsel Ms Jo-Ann Willson

and Outside Legal Counsel Mr. Richard Steinecke: June25,2O2O

o Effective Chair Training - led by outside Legal Counsel Ms Rebecca Durcan:

July 10, 2020
o Council Performance Measurement Framework and Evaluation Training -

led by Outside Legal Counsel Mr. Richard Steinecke and Outside Regulatory

Consultant Ms Deanna Williams: July 24,2O2O

o Advanced Training - Effective Chairing 2.0 - led by Outside Legal Counsel

Mr. Richard Steinecke and Outside Regulatory Consultant Ms Deanna

Williams: November 27, 2O2O

a New Council members are also required to complete the Discipline Training

sessions conducted by the Health Professions Regulators of Ontario (HPRO). ln

2020, all Council members were also encouraged to participate in HPRO

governance training, which took place on November 23 and 30, 2O2O. All training
sessions were 3-4 hours.

Ontario Ministry of Health 13



70
@)

College of Chiropraclors of Ontario
UOrdre des ChiropraticieN de l'Ontario

CCO CPMF Reporting Tocl - March 31, 2021

Orientation Training for New Committee Members

a CCO also conducts an orientation at the first Committee meeting once a new
committee is constituted. This includes a review of the role and mandate of the
committees, governing legislation and regulations of the committee, a review of
the standards of practice, policies and guidelines and various ongoing processes

and activities of the committee, the involvement of stakeholders and system
partners in the function of the committee, and the role of committee members
and staff.

a The HPRO discioline trainine is mandatory for all council and committee members
before sitting on a Discipline panel. This consists of two full day training sessions.
For the ICRC, outside legal counsel attended the first two meetings of the new
committee formed in April 2O2O to provide training and support. Other
committees, included orientations and introductions to the committees provided
by internal CCO staff, which typically were 30 minutes.

lf the response is "partially" or "no", is the College plonning to improve its pedormdnce ove: the next

reporting period? Yes & No i i

CCO is continuously reviewing its competency/suitability criteria and processes for Council
and committee members and looking at new educational and orientation opportunities
for new and current Council and committee members, including diversity and inclusion
training.

Ontario Ministry of Health !4



@@ nn:;
of Chiropraciors of Ontario
des Chiropraticiens de l'Ontario

71
CCO CPMF Reporting Tool - March 31, 2021

The College fulfills this requirement: Yes X Partially I No D

The competency / suitability criteria are public: Yes X No n

As part of the annual orientation session, Council and non-Council committee members
are provided with an orientation on all of the committees of CCO. These include the
mandate and composition of the committees, a description of the activities of the
committees and an expectation of the number of meetings and workload of the
committees. CCO also conducts an orientation at the first Committee meeting once a new
committee is constituted. This includes a review of the governing legislation and
regulations of the committee, a review of the standards of practice, policies and
guidelines and various processes and activities of the committee, and the role of
committee members and staff.

Appointments are made by CCO Council to committee in accordance with Bv-law 7 and
Bv-law 12. Duties and powers of executive officers and committee chairs are described in
By-law 7. By-law 12 describes that appointments of non-council committee positions
should "take into account location and type of practice, experience, professional
qualifications and skills, and other qualifications and characteristics of members to
complement the attributes of members of the committees who are members of Council."

Candidates interested in all committee positions are given an opportunity to speak to their
competencies and qualifications for that particular committee position and appointments
are made by election of Council members, in accordance with By-law 7. Non-Council
committee members are given an opportunity to provide a written letter of interest in
various committee positions and speak to their qualifications and competencies and are
elected by Council in accordance with By-law 7 and L2.

The meeting materials regarding appointments to committees are made public at the
followine link.

b. Statutory Committee candidates have:

i. met pre-defined competency /
suitability criteria, and

ii. attended an orientation training

about the mandate of the

Committee and expectations

pertaining to a membe/s role and

responsibilities.

Ontario Ministry of Health 15



72
KD

College of Chiropmctors of Ontario
fordre des Chiropraticiens de l'Ontario CCO CPMF Reporting Tool - March 31, 2021

lf the response is "partiolly" or "no", is the College planning to improve its pedoftndnce overthe nert
reporting periodT Yes x /vo

CCO is continuously reviewing its competency/suitability criteria and processes for council

and committee members and looking at new educational and orientation opportunities

for new and current council and committee members.

The College fulfills this requirement: Yes X Partially I No !

Once appointed to CCO Council, new public members are required to undergo an

orientation session conducted by CCO outside legal counsel which includes an

introduction to CCO, professional regulation and governance. This is an online training

typically 3-4 hours in length. Public members are also required to participate in all

orientation and training sessions listed above for council members conductd by CCO and

HPRO and are encouraged to participate in any other courses or training sessions offered.

HRPO training sessions are linked to at the followins link.

lf the response is "partiolly" or "no", is the College planning to imprcve its performance over the next

reporting period?Yes N No

:trdditloncrl r:omnt t:nts far tiorif icalian Iaptionai):

CCO continues to explore opportunities for additional training opportunities for public

members and encourages public members to find training opportunities relevant to their
duties at CCO as well. These training opportunities include both in-house training

conducted at CCO and training conducted by collaborative groups, such as HPRO.

c. Prior to attending their first meeting,

public appointments to Council

undertake an orientation training

course about the College's mandate

and expectations pertaining to the

appointee's role and responsibilities.

Ontario Ministry of Health 16



oLr& a0 t+

ITEM 4.2
raising standards if that might affect the supply of a profession, raising standards
if that would reduce the supply and therefore increase the exclusivity of a
profession, not taking action to remove someone from practice because there
would be a shortage of the profession, resisting innovation because that would
affect the current arrangements or promoting innovation because that will
increase market share.

9.17 Colleges need a clear mandate prioritizing patient safety and the clinical
competence and ethical conduct of registrants. The duty of regulatory Colleges
should be amended to give priority to the safety of patients. I propose:

'lt is the duty of a college at all times;

To protect the safety of patients, to prevent harm and promote the health and
well-being of the public.'

A mandate of this nature would ensure that regulatory colleges were focused
primarily on safety, on standards of clinical care and on the health needs of
patients.

Governance

9.18 The HPA is ambiguous in its use of 'members' and 'registrants'. The concept of
membership has led to many misunderstandings about the nature of professional
regulation. The idea of membership should be discarded and replaced
throughout with 'registrant.' lf Colleges do not have members, then there is no
need for an Annual General Meeting not indeed any of the other trappings of a
club such as award ceremonies and gifts to volunteers. Some will protest that this
removes the principle of professional self-regulation. lt does. Unlimited self-
regulation has in general proved itself unable to keep patients safe or to adapt to
changing healthcare provision and changing public expectations. Professional
regulation needs to be shared between the profession and the public in the
interests of society as a whole.

9.19 The construction of boards for colleges is unsatisfactory. This is not a reflection
of the competence or motivation of the individuals who are elected or appointed
but on what is an inadequate process for determining who should run these
important public institutions.

9.20 lt would be beneficial to move to fully appointed boards combining health
professionals and members of the public in equal parts. However, the
appointment process as currently operated in British Columbia is not
independent, transparent, competency based. lt cannot be relied upon at the
present time to take on a broader role.

9.21 I suggest as an interim measure that colleges introduce an effective nominations
process for professionals standing for election

73

oublish the comoetencies thev are for
to the board. The cgllgg,gj@gl!
andcandidatffi

demonstrate have the ri
n

skills and com to be a board
ection. The chair should be c

e r ea S ou continue
process. There is no need for a

mem rS U

epu appo
AS

74



9.22

9.23

9.24

9.25

9.26

9.27

9.28

9.29

9.30

74
treasurer if a college is no longer a club. The choice of having a vice-chair or not

should be left to each board. Vice-chairs, like chairs should be chosen by the
Board.

The Government should consider the process for the appointment of public

members so that it is more transparent, with public criteria and competencies for
appointment and attention paid to the skill mix on individual boards.

Boards should be reduced in size; the most effective size for a board is generally

agreed to be between eight and 12 people. This aids glgagement and

discussion and promotes corporate decision-making,107

Terms of office should be extended to three years, renewable for a further three
years, to provide continuity and the expertise which comes with experience. This

should apply to elected as well as appointed members. The current structure
encourages amateurism and short-term planning. Regulation is a long-term
business.

The number of statutory committees should be reduced; Audit and Risk,

Registration, lnquiry and Discipline are probably essential. Otherwise colleges
should be free to manage their own functions and involve registrants in the most

appropriate way for each task. Appointment to committees should be based on

competence and merit.

Colleges should be given greater freedom to change their own rules and bylaws.

Current arrangements are too cumbersome to allow them to respond to change
(see para 10.19 below).

Colleges should separate themselves entirely from professional associations.
They should not collect fees for professional associations or give them grants. Of
course, such associations or unions have a role to play and are often key
stakeholders for colleges, but they should not be accorded special privileges or
special influence on college decision-making.

lf a higher performance is to be expected of board and committee members, they
should be adequately rewarded. Board and committee members, both
professional and public should be paid for the time they give and the expertise
they provide. This is particularly relevant to the inquiry and discipline committees
which in the larger colleges may have too many cases for them to give the level

of independent scrutiny and decision-making that they require. lf the size of
boards and the number of committees is reduced the cost of adequate payments

to members will not be large and will be offset by gains in efficiency.

The Board should be removed from any involvement in complaints and discipline.
inquiry Committees and disciplinary panels should be independent, separately
appointed and should have regular training and appraisal. They should be paid

for their significant responsibilities.

PartZ.Ql of the HPA sets out arrangements for the amalgamation of colleges.
The Ministry of Health should actively encourage and facilitate mergers,

107 PSA 2011, Board size and effectiveness.

75



ITEM 4.3

College of Chiropractors of Ontario lnternal Elections - Committee Conflicts
Version Date: April 9,2O2t 75

ICRC and Core Discipline Seriousl ICRC refers cases to this
committee for neutral
adjudication, so chair and core
members should not overlap.

ICRC and Core Fitness to
Practise

Serious ICRC refers cases to this
committee for neutral
adjudication, so chair and core
members should not overlap.

ICRC and Quality Assurance Moderate2 QA refers matters to the ICRC,

knows privileged information,
and the ICRC is a small
committee with little capacity
to disqualify members.

ICRC and Advertising Moderate The same advertising issue may
come before committees and
the ICRC is a small committee.

PRC and ICRC Moderate The same advertising issue may
come up become both
committees and the ICRC is a

small committee with little
capacity to disqualify members

Registration and faculty of
accredited chiropractic college

Moderate Many applicants are former
students of faculty
Faculty mem ber's employer
may have an interest in and
public position on many policy
issues facing the RC (for
example, Legislation and Ethics
Examination or Provisional
Certificates of Registration).

1 Serious conflicts should be avoided. Otherwise, appearance of bias challenges will be frequent and having panel
members recuse themselves will be difficult.
2 Moderate conflicts should be reduced. For example, the chair of one committee should not serve on the other.
Overlapping membership should be minimal.



ITEM 5.1
Rose Bustria

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Jo-Ann Willson
Tuesday, March 30,2021 2:30 PM

Rose Bustria

President

Expression of lnterest in CCO Committees

2 1 Ma rch30ComSelTemP.docx

76

Good afternoon:

This communication is being forwarded to the Councilas it will be composed on April t4,2ozt' At the

last Executive Committee meeting on March 26,2O2!, and consistent with the Ministry's college

performance management framework (CpMF), the Executive directed that the Executive Officers try to

come up with a slate of individuals for each of the committees effective April 15, 2021, relying on

interest, skills, and experience/o r Council's considerotion. ln particular, Domain 1: Governance of the

CPMF says the following:

Council ond Stotutory Committee members hove the knowledge, skills ond commitment needed to

effectivety execute their fiduciory role ond responsibitities pertoining to the mondote of the College.

As a first step, it is important to know what committees (if any) Council members are interested in

serving on. lf for example you are very busy in practice and prefer to simply attend and participate at

Council meetings, you can indicate that (say Council only this year). l've tried to include in the attached

chart some information about approximate time commitments'

I realize that it will be difficult for the newest council members to complete this information until they

have had the orientation session, but please feel free to reach out to the chairs or others on the

committee if you want to learn more about any committee or its workload, and then file your form after

the orientation session if you prefer.

please note, 2O2o was an unusual year, so it is difficult to predict workload at this point since CCO has

been focused on essential functions only during the pandemic. However, core functions include ongoing

discipline hearings, Executive Committee meetings, the registration of applicants, administration of the

euality Assurance Program, and meeting the time lines required for the lnquiries, Complaints and

Reports Committee which has been reviewing an unprecedented number of complaints during the

pandemic.

please complete the attached form and return to me at your earliest convenience. Use a separate page

if required. Thank you very much.

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B.
Registrar & General Counsel
*Note Address Change

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden St., Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext. 11 1

Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail: iowillson@cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

1



CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain contidential information and is intended only for the person(s) named above. Any other
distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have received this e-mail in enor, please noti! mb immediately by repiy e-mail
and delete all copies including any attachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you.

77

2



t

Committee Selection Template 1

Version Date: March 30,2021.
78

All Council members are asked to complete this templote for all College Committees, even those thot ore not your first choice
The first two columns are pre-filled. Please do not add to them. Please complete the other columns. Most Council members
serue on two or three committees.

Council member's name:

1 To assist with the preparation of a slate for Council's consideration on April ]-5,202!.
2 Please note that it is strongly discouraged for anyone serving on both the lnquiries Complaints and Reports Committee while they serve on the Discipline or
Fitness to Practise Committees. Other committee overlaps should be minimized, such as either the Quality Assurance Committee or the Advertising Committee
and the lnquiries Complaints and Reports Committee.

Workload
(scale of 1- 5)

4

One meeting every
two months (8:30 a.m.

- 1:00 p.m.).

More meetings when
council not properly
constituted.
3

Monthly meetings to
review applicants
(usually 2 hours) plus

one or two meetings
annually to review

List any Affiliations that
might Sometimes Create
a Conflict of lnterest for

this Committee

Describe your Relevant Skills,
Training and Experience for

this Committee

Would You
Like to Serve

on this
Committee?2

Skills Helpfulfor this
Committee

Governance
Policy Development
Risk Management
Managerial
Human Relations
Accounting and Financial

Education
Examination
Entry-to-practise
competencies

Committee

Executive

Registration



79 2

Workload
(scale of 1- 5)

policies and
standards.

4

Monthly meetings
(approximately 5

hours per meeting).
Preparation is

intensive.
?-4

Contested hearings

can be several days

but most matters
resolved by joint
submission.
Usually, one full
meeting per year to
review policies and

standards.
"demand driven" i.e.,

depending on
referrals from ICRC.

0-1

Historically one
meeting per year to
review policies and

standards.

"demand driven" i.e.,

depending on
referrals from ICRC.

3

List any Affiliations that
might Sometimes Create
a Conflict of lnterest for

this Committee

Describe your Relevant Skills,

Training and Experience for
this Committee

Would You

Like to Serve
on this

Committee?2

Skills Helpful for this
Committee

Legal

lnvestigation
Conflict Resolution

Standards of Practice

Addictions and Mental
Health

Adjudication
Chairing
Legal

Adjudication
Chairing
Legal

Addictions and Mental
Health

Communications

Committee

lnquiries
Complaints
Reports

Discipline

Fitness to Practise

Patient Relations



80 3

Workload
(scale of 1- 5)

Willbe approximately
one meeting every
two months in view of
research study being
done by ACE at the U

of T.

One full meeting per
year to review policies

and standards.

3-4

2O2O an exceptional
year, but usually one
meeting every two
months.
Ongoing review and

monitoring of CCO's

QA program.
Peer Assessor training
day annually.
Some challenging
standards of practice

being considered for
recommendation to
Council.

2-3

Most work done
"online" as

committee's policy

development rests

List any Affiliations that
might Sometimes Create
a Conflict of lnterest for

this Committee

Describe your Relevant Skills,

Training and Experience for
this Committee

Would You

Like to Serve
on this

Committee?2

Skills Helpful for this
Committee

Public Relations

Conflict Resolution

Standards of Practice

Policy Development
Communications
Risk Management

Communications
Social Media
Legal

Committee

Quality Assurance

Advertising



81 4

Workload

with the Executive
Committee.
Generally ongoing
review of ads

submitted by
members with quick
turn around expected
(template provided)

List any Affiliations that
might Sometimes Create
a Conflict of lnterest for

this Committee

Describe your Relevant Skills,
Training and Experience for

this Committee

Would You
Like to Serue

on this
Committee?2

Skills Helpful for this
Committee

Committee



Collrce or CnrRopRAcroRs or OrurARro
Cowr wr rrre e Gorrr posrnoN

GouNcll- MeMeens @s of April 14,2021)

Internal Elections Scheduledfor April 15, 2021

Elected Members
Dr. Dennis Mizel, President
Dr. Jarrod Goldin
Dr. Colin Goudreau
Dr. Sarah Green
Dr. Kyle Grice
Dr. Paul Groulx
Dr. Steven Lester
Dr. Angelo Santin
Dr. Julia Viscomi

Executive
Dr. Dennis Mizel, Chair
Mr. Rob MacKay, Vice Chair
Ms Robyn Gravelle, Treasurer
Dr. Sarah Green
Dr. PaulGroulx
Mr. John Papadakis
Dr. Janit Porter
Mr. Joel Friedman, staff support
Ms Jo-Ann Willson, staff support

Inquiries, Gomplaints & Reports
Dr. Sarah Green, Chair
Mr. John Papadakis
Mr. Gagandeep Dhanda
Dr. Michael Statfen
Ms Anuli Ausbeth-Aj agu, alternate
Dr. Steve Gillis, non-Council
Ms Christine McKeown, staff support
Ms Tina Perryman, staff support

Disciplinel
Rob MacKay, Chair
Dr. Colin Goudreau
Ms Robyn Gravelle
Dr. Steven Lester
Dr. Daniela Arciero, non-Council
Dr. Liz Gabison, non-Council
Dr. Colleen Pattrick, non-Council
Dr. Janine Taylor, non-Council, alternate
Dr. G. Murray Townsend, non-Council, alternate
Dr. Matt Tribe, non-Council, alternate
Ms Jo-Ann Willson, staff support

Version date: April 9, 2021

ITEM 5.2

Appointed Members
Mr. Rob MacKay, Vice President
Ms Robyn Gravelle, Treasurer
Ms AnuliAusbeth-Ajagu
Mr. Markus de Domenico
Mr. Gagandeep Dhanda
Mr. John Papadakis
Mr. Shawn Southern

Fitness to Practise
Ms Robyn Gravelle, Chair
Dr. Gerard Arbour
Dr. Janit Porter
Ms Jo-Ann Willson, staff support

Patient Relations
Mr. John Papadakis, Chair
Dr. Janit Porter
Mr. Shawn Southern
Ms Anuli Ausbeth-Aj agu, alternate
Dr. Michelle Campbell, non-Council
Dr. Carolyn Wood, non-Council
Mr. Joel Friedman, staff support
Ms Jo-Ann Willson, staff support

Quality Assurance
Ms Robyn Gravelle, Chair
Dr. Gerard Arbour
Dr. Paul Groulx
Mr. Rob MacKay
Dr. Liz Anderson-Peacock, n on-Co u ncil
Mr. Joel Friedman, staff support
Dr. Bruce Walton, staff support
Ms Jo-Ann Willson, staff support

Registration
Dr. Paul Groulx, Chair
Mr. Gagandeep Dhanda
Mr. John Papadakis
Dr. Michael Staffen
Mr. Markus de Domenico, alternate
Ms Madeline Cheng, staff support
Ms Jo-Ann Willson, staff support
Mr. Joel Friedman, staff support

82

SrRrurony CoMMTTTEES UNDER THE REoULATED Heenu PnoresstoNs Acr, 1991
as of April 13, 2021 (before Council Meeting)

1 All members of Council are potentially members of a Discipline and Fitness to Practise panel



Council and Commiftee Composition until April 13, 2021 2

Non'SrnruroRY Corrttmrrree

Advertising
Dr. Gerard Arbour, Chair
Mr. Gagandeep Dhanda
Dr. Janit Porter
Dr. lan Quist, non-Council
Mr. Rob Mackay, alternate
Mr. Joel Friedman, staff support

Srnrr MeMeens

Ms Rose Bustria
Ms Madeline Cheng
Ms Anouk Enkhbaatar
Mr. Joel Friedman
Ms Christine McKeown
Ms Tina Perryman
Ms Funto Odukoya
Mr. Darwin Visperas
Ms Anda Vopni
Dr. J. Bruce Walton
Ms Jo-Ann Willson

Executive Assistant
Registration Coordinator
Adm inistrative Assistant
Deputy Registrar
lnquiries, Complaints & Reports Officer
Manager, lnquiries, Complaints & Reports
Admi nistrative Assistant
Assistant Reg istration Coordi nator
Financial Officer
Director of Professional Practice
Registrar and General Counsel

83

101
113
109
104
110
103

102
105
106
111



ITEM 5.3

MeuoneNDUM

CollecE oF CHtnopRAcroRS oF OurRruo

To: CCO Council

From: Nominations Working Group

Date: Aprll9,2021

Subject: Nominations Chart and lnternal Elections Process

The Executive Committee had an opportunity to review the College Performance Measurement

Framework (CPMF), which was submitted to the Ministry of Health on March 31,202'J,. The Ministry of
Health is one of CCO's key stakeholders, and it is important that all parts of the college, Council,

committees and operations, be moving towards the aspirational goals in the CPMF, while maintaining

and continuing the work that is already being done in many areas.

The first measure of the CPM F reads:

Where possible, Council ond Stotutory Committee members demonstrote thot they hove the knowledge,

skills ond commitment prior to becoming o member of Council or o statutory committee.

Similar objectives and best practices for regulatory bodies have been identified in the document "An

lnquiry into the Performance of the College of Dental Surgeons of British Columbia and the Health

Professions Act" ("Cayton Report")1 and the governance model developed by the College of Nurses of
Ontario (CNO)2, supported by the Ministry of Health as a best practice. Matching interest with skills and

competency is best practice, used by many other health regulators in Ontario.

Based on moving towards these aspirational objectives, the Executive Committee directed all Council

members to provide their interest and relevant background/experience for any committees to facilitate

the preparation of a nominations chart for Council's consideration. This process will continue to be

reviewed and refined as CCO moves forward and there will likely be further by-law amendments

required.

Thank you to Council members for forwarding your relevant experience and interest in the different CCO

committees. The Executive Officers were able to meet with Richard Steinecke on April 7 ,2021- to review

a process to implement this measure. Based on legal advice to ensure consistency with CCO by-laws, the

election nominations chart should be considered as nominations put forward by the Nominations

Working Group, as directed by the Executive Committee, based on the interest, relevant

background/experience and in an effort to create a balance of experienced and new Council members

on various committees, as well as ensuring some continuation, capacity building and succession

t https://www2.eov.bc.calassets/govlhealth/practitioner-pro/professional-regulation/cavton-report-college-of-
denta l-su rseons-2018. pdf
2 https://www.cno.orglglobalassets/1-whatiscno/governance/final-report--leading-in-reeulatorv-governance-
task-force. pdf

84



Memorandum dated April 9, 2O2L

Re: Nominations Chart and lnternal Elections Process

planning. We were mindfulof the Committee Conflicts Chart in preparing the nominations. During the
Council meeting on April 15,2O2L, nominations from the nomination chart will be presented for each
executive officer position, committee position and chair position. lf there are no further nominations at
the meeting, the position will be acclaimed. lf there are further nominations, Council will conduct an

internal election for that position, based on generally accepted democratic procedures, and consistent
with the process for internal elections used in the August 2020 internal elections.

Thank you for your continued participation in the self-regulation of the chiropractic profession and for
your commitment to continuous quality improvement in all CCO practices and processes.

85

2



Rose Bustria ITEM 6.1

Jo-Ann Willson
Tuesday, March 30,2021 12:04 PM

Rose Bustria

President

NonCouncil Committee Member Positions on CCO effective April 15,

2021

88
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subiect:

Good morning:

This communication is being forwarded to all noncouncil committee members on CCO committees. I

know this has been an extraordinary year for a number of reasons, and that some committees have not
actually met in view of CCO's focus on essential functions during the pandemic. However, would each of
you please advise whether you would or would not be interested in serving in the same (or a different)
capacity as a noncouncil committee member for the internal elections currently scheduled for April 15,

2021. Thank you very much, and thank you all for your perseverance and commitment during a

challenging time for everyone.

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B.
Registrar & General Counsel
*Note Address Change

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden St., Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext.111
Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the person(s) named above. Any other
distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have received this e-mail in error, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail

and delete all copies including any aftachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you.

1



Rose Bustria ITEM 6.2

Subiect: FW: NonCouncil Committee Member Positions on CCO effective April

15,2021

From: Elizabeth Anderson-Peacock <drliz@ bellnet.ca>
Sent: Tuesday, March 30,2O2L 12:22PM
To: Jo-Ann Willson <ipwillson @cco.on.ca>
Subject: Re: NonCouncil Committee Member Positions on CCO effective April 15,2021

Thank you for asking.

I WOULD be honoured to serve in the same capacity as a non-council member

Liz
Elizabeth Anderson-Peacock
drliz@bellnet.ca
CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION: This email and any files transmitted with it are intended only
for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged

material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking any action in reliance
upon this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is strictly prohibited. lf
you received this message in error, please contact Dr. Liz Anderson-Peacock immediately and

delete the material.

On Mar 30,2021, alt2:O4 PM, Jo-Ann Willson <ipwillson@cco.on'ca> wrote

Good morning:

This communication is being forwarded to all noncouncil committee members on CCO

committees. I know this has been an extraordinary year for a number of reasons, and

that some committees have not actually met in view of CCO's focus on essential

functions during the pandemic. However, would each of you please advise whether you

would or would not be interested in serving in the same (or a different) capacity as a

noncouncil committee member for the internal elections currently scheduled for April

t5,2021. Thank you very much, and thank you all for your perseverance and

commitment during a challenging time for everyone.

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B.
Registrar & General Counsel
*Note Address Change

College of Ghiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden St., Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (41 6) 922-6355 ext. 1 1 1

Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

CONFI DENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the person(s)

named above. Any other distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have received this e-mail in

error, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail and delete all copies including any attachments without reading it or

making a copy. Thank you.

89

1



Rose Bustria 90
From:
Sent:
lo:
Subject:
Attachments:

Joel Friedman

Monday, April 5, 20219:14 AM

Jo-Ann Willson; Rose Bustria

FW: Application for appointed professional member of Council

Shortened Vitae Liz AP.Pdf

JoelD. Friedman, BSc, LL.B

Deputy Registrar
College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden Street, Suite 800

Toronto, Ontario M4Y 0E7

Tel: (416)922-6355 ext. 104

Toll Free: L-877 -577 -477 2

Fax: (416) 925-95L0
E-mail: ifriedma n @cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

CONFI DENTIALITY WARN I NG :

This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the

person(s) named above. Any other distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have

received this e-mail in error, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail and delete all copies including

any attachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you'

From: Elizabeth Anderson-Peacock <drliz@ bellnet.ca>

Sent: Thursday, APril L,20215:35 PM

To: Joel Friedman <JFriedman@cco.on.ca>

subject: Application for appointed professional member of council

Re-iterating the template from 2O2O for consideration by council in 202t for the QA committee.

lf there is a more appropriate template I should be using, please advise'

Thank you for the opportunity to submit an application as I did want to offer my experience in

commitiee work, iflwhen nominations are being accepted. Please find attached a shortened

vitae for consideration.

Those who have worked with me at Council in the past know I represent a rational, logical,

tempered and balanced approach. I listen, reflect and think independently'

I encourage others to speak up in committees so that many views are presented and

considered. I believe aliwho have worked with me would verify that my involvement has been

with the public interest foremost in mind.

I am not new to governance or the work of the CCO aS my vitae attests.

My prior involvement at CCO has been to participate fully, encouraging healthy discussions,

ensuring the public appointed members voices are heard, and to be fiscally responsible. This

would be brought forward as committee member too.
1



Thank you for your consideration

Best regards,
Liz

Dr. Elizabeth Anderson-Peacock BSc., D.C.
drliz(obellnet.ca
39 Doran Rd.

Midhurst, ON LgX 113

91

2



92

NAME:
BUSINESS ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:

EMAIL:

Dr. Elizabeth (Liz) Anderson-Peacock BSc., DC

39 Doran Rd

Midhurst, Ontario, Canada

L9x tL3

loS.79+.r$t+
drliz@bellnet.ca

A. PROFESSIONAL HISTORY:

2oto - Locum Doctor and Private Practice with focus on my area of interest

1989 - 2oo9 Practice in Barrie, Ontario - multi generational practice

t986 - 1988 Practice Scarborough, Ontario
1986 - 1986 Associate at Bellamy North Chiropractic and Sports

lniury Clinic

B.ED@:
October zorz Gompleted a year long Train the Trainer Program rM with The Canfield Training Group .

Transformational Leadership Training

February zorr Professional Health coach (one year Program in zolo-zott)

Sept. 19;G Received specialty designation as Diplomate of the International Chiropractors Association

Gouncil on Chiropractic Pediatrics (DICCP), Certification maintained and recognized in USA

May r993 - 1996 pursued a three year 35o hour post-graduate Diplomate in Pediatrics and Pregnancy

through the tCA and Palmer College of Chiropractic (CCE accredited)

Sept. 1982 -1986 Docto-r of Chiropractic (Clinical Honours), Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College (CMCC)

Sept. 1981 - r98z Visiting Student, University of Calgary, Calgary, Alberta

sept. 1g7g - 1981 Bachelor of science, University of winnipeg winnipeg Manitoba

C. TEACHING HISTORY:

zo12- zo17 Management consultant - 3 year TN Visa for USA granted 2012' renewed for zot5 & 2018

r99G- ongoing Continuing education for multiple Canadian, American and New Zealand chiropractic

Colleges/University post graduate programs. Area of teaching: subiect matter interest is in

chiropractic care for pregnancy and children, chiropractic clinical skill development, and

transformational leadership development using the cooperative model of coaching.

Sept. 1986 - April 1989: Part-time faculty CMCC teaching third year orthopedics laboratory

Sept. - Dec. 1988: Georgian College instructor for course called Essential Life Choices Barrie, ON

sept. 1985 - April 1986: CMCC Physiology Laboratory coordinator Toronto, ON

Sept. 1984 - April 1986: CMCC Physiology Laboratory demonstrator and tutor' Toronto, ON

July - Aug. t984: Historical Archivist CMCC Clemmer Library Toronto, ON

Sept. rgAo - March 1982: University of Winnipeg Collegiate chemistry laboratory coordinator and instructor

D. ACTIVITIES and AWARDS:
zot8 - zo Member of the American Association for the Advancement of Science

2018- Life Chiropractic College West President's Circle

2013 April Elected to Gollege of Chiropractors of Ontario for a 3 year term. The CCO is the governing body

re-elected of chiropractors in Ontario under the Regulated Health Professions Act.

in zor5 For 2ot8-2o19 sitting on CCO board as Vice Presiden! Executive and Chair of Quality Assurance.

For 2o1l-2o17 sitting on CCO board, Executive and Chair of Quality Assurance Committee.

Fot zot1-2o17 sitting on CCO board, Executive, Quality Assurance and Chair of Fitness to

Practice committee.
For zot5-zot5 sitting on CCo board and Executive committee'



93

Fur 2o14-2ul5 slttlng on CCO board, Executive and Registration committees.
For ror3-zot4 sitting on Board and euality Assurance committee.
Discipline tribunal panel member while on CCO in 2o14r 2015, 2otg

2o1i Received recognition by OCA for 25 years of membership
2oo9 Received World Congress of Women Chiropractors award for "Woman of the year,
uoo6- >oto Chiropractic Fitness and Wellness Magazine - pediatric Editor
zoo5 Received Ontario Chiropractic Association Heart and Hand Award
2oo3-2oo9 Diplomate Chair for Academy of Family practice USA
2006 Writer & reviewer for the pediatric section of the PCCRP radiological

guidelines for chiropractic practice - ICA practice guidelines
May zt/o3 Training for Chiropractic and Pediatrics for TVO on behalf of the Canadian

Chiropractic Working Group (CCWG)
2oo2-2oo8 Appointed to the Steering Committee for the Clinical Practice Guidelines Development Canada
April zoor witness and opinion for the college of chiropractors of ontario (cco)

Regarding chiropractic pediatrics
Jan. zoOt- 2015 Peer and Practice Assessor for the College of Chiropractors of Ontario QA Committee
Aug. 2oo0 Examination item writer & contributor for the Canadian Chiropractic Examinations Board
2ooo - 2ooJ Appointed non-council member of the Complaints committee of

The College of Chiropractors of Ontario
Jan. zooo Appointed member of the clinical competency team of examiners for the

Canadian Chiropractic Examinations Board
Dec. t998 Received ilChiropractor of the year' from the Canadian

Chiropractor Magazine - elected by peers and featured in the editorial of
December r998 Vol.3 (5)

July t998 Received JrFellow" from the lnternational Chiropractors Association
sePt. 1996 Co-valedictorian for Diplomate (DICCP) class with chiropractic pediatric

specialty (USA)
199j- 1999 Appointed member of the examination committee for the College of

Chiropractors of Ontario
t99t - t996 Chair of the Ontario Chiropractors Association (OCA) Public Hospitals

Act and Laboratory Review Committee
1994 - 1997 President of the Simcoe Chiropractic Society
r99o - 199t Barrie Business and Professional Womenrs Club Budget director
1989 - 1990 Barrie Chamber of Commerce committee member for the Ambassador Club
t989't99o Barrie Woments Business council Coordinator-convener for professional

speakers and social program
t989 - r99z President of the Barrie Chiropractic Society
r989 - r99o Member of OCA Steering Committee for Cell Networking
t985 - t986 Student Member of both internal and extemal academic review

Committee at the Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College
t985 - t986 Student member of CMCC curriculum development committee
t985 - t986 Vice'president student body - Student Administrative Council at CMCC
t985 Award of Merit from student body at CMCC
t98z - 1983 Class president CMCC
1977 - tg78 Director at Large, University of Winnipeg
t977 - 1978 Member of Security committee, University of Winnipeg
1977 - t978 President of student body, University of Winnipeg Collegiate



94

E. ACTIVITY AND ORGAN IZATION MEMBERSHI PS:

2013- 2or9 Elected board member of the College of Chiropractors of Ontario
re-elected zot6

2012 President of World Congress of Women Chiropractors
2o1o- Australian Spinal Research Foundation academic panel reviewer
2oro-2o12 Board member of WCWC (World Congress of Women Chiropractors)
2oro-2o16 Member of the Canadian Association of Professional Speakers (CAPS)

zoog - zo15 Board Member of YMCA Simcoe/Muskoka
2oo9- 2014 Strong Kids Campaign
2oo9 - 2o1o Campaign Cabinet for Health & Wellness Building $5+ Million expansion Georgian College
zooS -2o1o President of the Academy of Family Practice - USA
2oo8 - 2orl Board member of the Academy of Family Practice - USA
2oo7 - Lifetime Member Women Congress of Women Chiropractors USA
2oo7- 2oo9 Member of Barrie Business Women's Network
zoo4 - zoo8 ICPA Diplomate examiner, Pennsylvania
2oo3 - zo12 Canadian Chiropractic Research Foundation Member
2oo3 - 2oo4 Biotonix Advisory Board member, Montreal
2oo3 - 2o12 CMCC Governorts Club member, Toronto
2oo5 Member of the Barrie Business Forum
2oo5 Member of the City of Barrie Business Ambassadors
zoo4- zoto Member of the Barrie Chamber of Commerce
2oo2 - zoog Guidelines Development Committee for CCA-CFCRB Chiropractic

Practice Guidelines: Canada
1999 - zoot Member of the lnternational Childbirth Education Association
1998 Member of the Chiropractic Awareness Council - Ontario
May t994 Member of Chiropractic delegation to the Peoples Republic of China

through Palmer College, the lnternational Chiropractors Association
and People to People Ambassador program (USA)

tggj - Member of the International Chiropractic Association (lCA) Council on
Pediatrics and a Founding Member of the Council (USA)

1991 - Lifetime member of the lnternational Chiropractors Association
t988 - Member of the lnternational Chiropractic Pediatrics Association
t986 - Registered with the College of Chiropractors of Ontario (CCO)

(formally the Drugless Practitioners Act)
1986 - t999 Member of Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College
& zooi-zoi6
t985 -zot3 Member of Ontario Chiropractic Association
1985 - 2o13 Member of Canadian Chiropractic Association
t985 - r99o Member of the National Strength and Conditioning Association
1985 - t987 Member of the American Council of Diagnostic Radiology



Rose Bustria ITEM 6.3
Jo-Ann Willson
Thursday, April B, 2021 8:05 AM
Rose Bustria

FW: Letter of lntent & Resume for lnternal Elections

Dr Daniela Arciero resume cco internal elections 2021.pdf; Dr. Daniela

Arciero letter of intent CCO internal elections 2021.pdf

95
From:
Sent:
To:
Subiect:
Attachments:

Elections (pink)

Jo-Ann Wllson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B.
Registrar & General Counsel
*Note Address Change

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden St., Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (4'16) 922-6355 ext. 11 1

Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

CONFI DENTIALITY WARN ING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the person(s) named above. Any other

distribution, copying-or disctoJui" is itrictty proninited. tf you have received this e-mail in enor, please notifi me immediately by reply e-mail

and delete all copies including any aftachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you'

From: Daniela Arciero <danielaa rciero@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, April 7, 2O2t LL:L7 PM

To: Jo-Ann Willson <jpwillson @cco.on'ca>
Subject: Letter of lntent & Resume for lnternal Elections

HiJo-Ann,

please find attached my resume & letter of intent to be included in the council package for the internal

elections next week.

Please confirm that you have received these two documents, thank you.

Hope you're well :)

Warm regards,

Daniela

1



DANIELA ARCIERO, D.C.
3865 Major Mackenzie Dr. W' fL11Vaughan, ON'

d r.da n iela @then estheath.ca (647)24L-8t64 CCO #605 1

April4,202t

Council Members, CCO

59 Hayden St. Suite 800

Toronto, ON

M5S 1.N5

Dear Council Members of the CCO,

It has been a privilege and honour to have served on the Discipline Committee for the past five

years and l'd like to express my interest to continue on as a non-council member to assist in

ensuring the ethical practice of chiropractic in the public interest.

I have completed both the Bosic and Advonced Discipline Committee Trainings through HPRO' I

have also cormpleted the HpRO trainings on Potient SexualAbuse and Sexuol Misconduct under

the RHpA: The Discipline Heoring. I have chaired four discipline hearings and delivered several

reprimands since Janua ry 2020 and feel comfortable and confident in those roles.

My clinical experience includes working within a hospital team in the Department of Physical

Medicine at the MiamiVeteran's Affairs Medical Centre and their outpatient clinic in Florida.

Over the last 10 years, I have worked as a locum in many offices, in a multi-chiropractor office, in

solo practice and in the most recent five years I have worked in multi-disciplinary clinics' This

variety of experience has provided me with an understanding of a wide range of practice styles

and different areas of clinical focus.

ln 2Ol-9, I co-founde dThe Nest Health, a multi-disciplinary clinic in Vaughan with a clinical focus

on women's health and have built a team of dedicated practitionersthatshare a common

mission to support women and their health in a patient-centered model.

I would appreciate your support and the opportunity to continue to serve as a member of the

Discipline Committee with my transparent, balanced and collaborative approach.

Thank you for your consideration and for your continued leadership.

Sincerely,

96

Daniela Arciero, D.C.



DANIELA ARCIERO, D.C.
3865 Major Mackenzie Dr. #111W. Vaughan, ON.

d r.da n iela @thenesthea lth.ca
(647)241-8164

cco #6051

97

PRACTICE HISTORY

Doctor of Chiropractic
o Co-Founder & Chiropractor, The Nest Health, Vaughan, ON (September 2019-present)

o Private practice, Vaughan, ON (May 201-1-present)

o West End Mamas/Dr. Sarah & Associates Toronto, ON (June 2016-May 2019)

r lnside Out Family Chiropractic, Bolton, ON (July 201LJune 2013)

Locum Doctor
o Pathmark Locum Service, lnc. (May 201'1'-20L7)

o Live Well Strength & Rehabilitation, Bobcaygeon, ON. (August 2011-present)

Chiropractic lntern
o Miami Veterans' Affairs Medical Center, Miami, Florida (July 2010-March 2011-)

o New york Chiropractic College Health Centers, Seneca Falls, NY (January-July 2010)

o Monroe Community Hospital, Rochester, NY (April-May 2010)

r Sport Science & Human Performance Club, NYCC (2009-2010)

r ChiroMission, Dominican Republic (2009 & 2010)

EDUCATION

Doctor of Chiropractic, New York Chiropractic College, Seneca Falls, NY

o Dean's List & Clinic Honours
o Distinguished Service Award
o lnternational Student Academic Scholarship

o Educational Opportunity Academic Award

Bachelor of Professional Studies - Life Science, New York Chiropractic College, Seneca Falls, NY

Bachelor of Science - Life Science, Queen's University, Kingston, Ontario

o Barb Relton Athletic Award - Varsity Women's Rugby

VOLUNTEER WORK
o Examiner & SCTP, Canadian Chiropractic Examining Board (2017-present)

o Non-council Committee member, Discipline Committee, CCO (2016-present)

o Non-councilCommittee member, Patient Relations Committee, CCO (2014-201'6)

r Chiropractor, Pan Am & Para Pan Am Games MedicalTeam, Toronto (2015)

o Director, Queen's Women's Rugby Alumni (2012-present)

CONTI NU ING DEVELOPMENT

o HpRO - Sexual Misconduct Under the RHPA: The Discipline Hearing (2020)

o HPRO - Training on Sexual Abuse (2020)

o Clinical Certainty Through Functional Assessment (2020)

r Advanced Perinatal Clinical Application (2019)

r Thompson Technique (2019)

r Evidence Based Birth (2018)



DANIELA ARCIERO, D.C.
3865 Major Mackenzie Dr. #111W. Vaughan, ON

d r. da n iela @thenesthea lth.ca
(647)24L-8r64

cco #6051

98

r OCA's Pediatrics for the Doctor of Chiropractic with Dr. Elise Hewitt (2018)
o FHRCO Advanced Discipline Training (2017)
r Bellies lnc. - Core Confidence Specialist Certification (2016)
e FHRCO Basic Discipline Training (2016)
e lnternational Chiropractic Pediatric Association - 200 hour program (2014-2015)
r Neurokinetic Therapy- Level 1 (2013)
r Dr. Arno Burnier Technique Seminar (2011)

LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS

o College of Chiropractors of Ontario
o Canadian Chiropractic Examining Board
o National Board of Chiropractic Examiners - Board Certified: Parts l, ll, lll, lV & Physiotherapy (USA)
o CPR & Emergency Cardiac Care Provider
r Webster technique

AFFILIATIONS & M EMBERSH IPS

o Canadian Chiropractic Association
o OntarioChiropracticAssociation
r Canadian Chiropractic ProtectiveAssociation
. lnternational Chiropractic PediatricAssociation

REFERENCES

Dr. John A. D'Amico, D.C.

Mia mi Veterans' Affairs Medical Center
Department of Physical Medicine
1201 NW 16th St. Miami, FL

usA 33125
john.d'amico@va.gov

(305) 575-7000, x3498

Dr. Crystal L. Longo, D,C.

Live Well Strength & Rehabilitation Centre
58 Duke St. Bobcaygeon, ON,

KOM 1AO

longm u i rcrysta I @ hotma i Lcom
(70s],738-4ss4



Rose Bustria ITEM 6.4

Subject: FW: NonCouncil Committee Member Positions on CCO effective April
15,2021

From: Dr. Michelle D. Campbell <michelle@campbellcc.com>

Sent: Tuesday, March 30, 2O2L 2:!4 PM

To: Jo-Ann Willson <ipwillson@cco.on.ca>
Subject: Re: NonCouncil Committee Member Positions on CCO effective April L5,2021.

Hithere,
Thank you. Yes, I am interested in staying on and being able to contribute to a committee. Thank you

On Tue, Mar 30, 2O2L at L2:O4 PM Jo-Ann Willson <ipwillson@cco.on.ca> wrote

Good morning:

This communication is being forwarded to all noncouncil committee members on CCO committees. I

know this has been an extraordinary year for a number of reasons, and that some committees have not

actually met in view of CCO's focus on essential functions during the pandemic. However, would each

of you please advise whether you would or would not be interested in serving in the same (or a

different) capacity as a noncouncil committee member for the internal elections currently scheduled

for April 15,2O2'J.. Thank you very much, and thank you all for your perseverance and commitment
during a challenging time for everyone.

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B.

Registrar & General Counsel

*Note Address Change

College of Ghiropractors of Ontario

59 Hayden St., Suite 800

Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7

Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext. 111

Fax: (416) 925-96'10

E-mail: iowillson@cco.on.ca

Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

99

1

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING



100
Curriculum Vitae

DR. MICHELLE D. CAMPBELL
Chiropractor and Owner, Campbell Care Centre

michelle@campbellcc. com
(c) r-226-377-102r

EDUCATION

20t4

2008

2004

2004

PROFE SSIONAL MEMBERSIIIPS

2008 - present
2008 - present
2008 - present
2008 - present
2004 - 2009

2008

Canadian Chiropractic Association (CCA)
Ontario Chiropractic Association (OCA)
Canadian Chiropractic Protective Association (CCPA)
International Chiropractic Pediatric Association (ICPA)
Canadian Society of Exercise Physiologists (CSEP)

St. John's Rehabilitation Hospital, North York, Ontario
Carefree Lodge Chiropractic Back Health and Safety Presentation
CMCC Campus Clinic, Toronto, Ontario

Chiropractic Intern
CMCC and St. Michael's Hospital (Toronto, ON)

Part One Diplomate (C.A.C.C.P.) from the International Chiropractic Pediatric As-

sociation in the field of Pediatrics and Pregnancy

Doctor of Chiropractic
Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College (CMCC)

' Canadian Board certified (CCEB)

' American National Board certified I, II, III, IV and Physiotherapy

' Webster's Certification (ICPA)

Certified Exercise Physiologist (CSEP), University of Waterloo

Bachelor of Science, Honours Kinesiology and Speech Communication Option,
University of Waterloo

EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE

20Il - present Doctor of Chiropractic, Campbell Care Centre
Owner / Operator
London, Ontario

2018 - present College of Chiropractors of Ontario
Peer Assessor for District 6

2008 - 2013 Locum Chiropractor / In-home Chiropractor
Various locations in Ontario

2008 - 2010 Independent Chiropractor
In-home assessments, various locations in Ontario

I

2007



Curriculum Vitae

2007 - 2008

2003 - 2008

2003 - 2008

2000 -2006

2000 - 2004

INTERESTS AND ACTIVITIES

2016 - present

2012 - 2017

2013 - 20t7

an 1 n an1'7LWLW - LVL I

2014

20t3

20t3

2013

2007 -2008

2001 - 2008

2004 -20a7

2004 -2007

101

Teaching Assistant
Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College, Toronto, Ontario
' Lead problem-based learning tutorials on clinical applications to third year

chiropractic students

Team Trainer
Kitchener Panthers Baseball, Kitchener Ontario
' Primary on-field practitioner responsible for emergency treatrnent and ongoing

musculoskeletal concems of athletes

Personal Trainer
Women's Fitness Clubs, Toronto Ontario
Benchmark lnc., Toronto, Ontario
Goodlife Fitness Club, Waterloo, Ontario

Fitness Appraiser
Applicant Testing Services, London, Ontario (Police Officers)
University of Waterloo, Waterloo, Ontario (Firefighters)

Residence Don; Residence Tour Guide Coordinator; Student Ambassador; Re-
scarch Assistant; Studcnt Kincsiologist
University of Waterloo, Waterloo, Ontario

CTVNews - Local Chiropractic Expert

President, London Chiropractic Association

Guest Lecturer inApplied Health Sciences, University of Waterloo

Founding Member and Volunteer Chiropractor, Salvation Army Centre of Hope

CMCC Interview Selection Panel for Class of 2018

Guest Speaker, Massage Therapy Program, Fanshawe College

CMCC Interview Selection Panel for Class of 2017

Medical Doctor Presentation for Westem University with Ontario Chiropractic As-
sociation

Student Canadian Chiropractic Association (SCCA) High School Outreach Pro-
gram Leader

Team Trainer (University of Waterloo, Kitchener Panthers Baseball)

CMCC Female Athletic Representative and Sports Club Representative

Chiropractic Games Participant at New York Chiropractic College, Parker Chiro-
practic College and Palmer Chiropractic College

Volunteer Medical Team Member, Ontario Summer Games

2

2002



102
Curriculum Vitae
Ongoing Charitable Involvement including: Salvation Army, Brain Injury Association of

London, My Sister's Place, Backs in Motion, Cancer Society and Breast Cancer,

Heart and Stroke, Terry Fox, Hoops 4 Heart, University Residence Charity Repre-

sentative.

Previous Youth Athletic coach (Fastball, Basketball, Figure Skating)

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

2017 London Top 20 Under 40 Award Winner

2017 Consumer Choice Award Winner for Best Chiropractor

2017 RBC Canadian Women Entrepreneur Nominee

201,7 Top 3 Rated Chiropractors, London ON

2016,2015 our London Readers' choice Nominee for best chiropractor

2015 Patient's Choice Awards by Opencare

2015,2016 Our London Readers' Choice Nominee for best Chiropractor

2073,2014,2015 Best of London chiropractorAward winner (Runner up)

2014,2015,2016 Best of London Massage Therapist at Campbell Care Centre
(Winner and Runner Up)

2013 Applied Health Sciences Young Alumni Award (Runner Up)

ZOll Successful Applied Health Sciences Alumni Profile selected at the University of
Waterloo

2008 Marilyn Phillips Award for Chiropractic Involvement

2008 Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College Valedictorian Nominee (Class of 2008)

2004 Outstanding Graduating Senior Award for UW Athletic Therapists

PUBLICATIONS

Weis, C., Trian, J.J., Barrett, J., Campbell, M.D., Croy, M. and Roeder, J. (2015). UltrasoundAssessment of
Abdominal Muscle Thickness in Postparlum vs Nulliparous Women. Journal of Manipulative and Physio-

logical Therapeutics, 38(5), 352-3 57 .

3



Rose Bustria ITEM 6.5

Jo-Ann Willson
Thursday, APril 8, 2021 2:15 PM

Rose Bustria

FW: CCO Non-Council Member CV

CV CCO 2021.rtf

r03
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Council (elections).

Jo-Ann willson, B.Sc., M.S.W.' LL B.

Registrar & General Counsel
*Note Address Change

College of Ghiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden St., Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext. 111

Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@cco.on'ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

eonrt oerutnLtrY wARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only lor the person(s) named above Any other

distribution, copying or disctosure is stricfly prohibiteo. rt vou nive received this e-mail in error, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail

and delete all copies including any aftachments without reading it or making a copy' Thank you'

From: Liz Gabison <drliz@rogers.com>

Sent: ThursdaY, APril 8,2O2t 12:48 PM

To: Jo-Ann Willson <jpwillson @cco.on.ca>

Subject: CCO Non-Council Member CV

Good Afternoon Jo-Ann,

Please see attached my current cv for my intention to apply for a Non-Council Member

position.

I am open and happy to take whatever the college is in need of'

Thank you!

Dr. E.B. Gabison, B.Sc., B.Ed',D.C', CVRP(F)-TSA, RTWDM' MBA

929 Kingston Rd. Toronto, On M4E 1SO 647 295 5424

Notice of confidentiality: The information transmitted is intended only for the person or

entity to which it is addiessed and may contain confidential and/or privileged

material. Any review re-transmission dissemination or other use of or taking of any

action in reliance upon this information by persons or entities other than the intended

iecipient is prohibited. lf you received this in error please contact the sender

immediately by return ele-ctronic transmission and then immediately delete this

transmission including all attachments without copying distributing or disclosing same'

1



104
April 8, 2021

Re: Non-Council Member CCO

To whom it may concern,

please see attached my updated CV. My experience serving as a.as a peer assessor, a

memner of the disciplin-e cbmmittee and-for bver 20 years as a chiropractor provides me
wiin ttre siiti set reqi.rired by the CCO to protect the public interests in a knowledgeable
and compassionate manner.

Should you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me.

I look forward to hearing from You.

Thank you,

Liz Gabison
B.Sc., B.Ed., D.C., CVRP(F)-TSA, RTWDM, MBA



Curriculum Yltae 2021

Liz B. Gabison
Vocational Rehab Professional and Chiropractor
40 Burnaby Blvd
Toronto, On M5G 128
647-295-5424
drliz@rogers.com

105

EDUCATION

MBA (Leadership), Fredericton University

Alternate Dispute and Resolution, Windsor Law

Conducting Disciplinary Hearings

Registered Rehabilitation Professional

Electro Therapeutic Point Stimulation Course Training

Fellow, Certificate Vocational Professional

Progressive Goal Attainment (PGAP) Certified

Permanent lmpairment Ratings lndependent Chiropractic
Examiner

Physical Demand Evaluator, Metrix

Functional Capacity Evaluator, Metrix

Bachelor of Education, York University

Acupuncture Certification Program, CMCC

Doctor of Chiropractic, CMCC

Bachelor of Science, Human Biology, University of Toronto

2020

2016

2018

2012

2011

2012

2012

2009

2009

2008

2005

2002

1997

1 990

ACADEM IC/ SU PERVISORY EXPERI ENCE

Faculty, Canadian College of Naturopathic Medicine

Faculty, Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College

Facilitator, Allergan, Physician Review of Anatomy for Botox
injections

Parttime Clinical Supervisor, CMCC

2002 - 2019

2000 - 2003

2000 - 2003

2001 - 2002



106

Member of the Clinical Services Group, Footmax 1997 - 1998

WORK EXPERIENCE

Trillium Health Partners, Hospital

Sunlife, Disability Case Management
Vocational Rehabilitator, Canadian Armed Forces/M anulife

Vocational Evaluator Consultant Altum Health/UHN

Expert Witness, Supreme Court British Columbia

Cira Medical Services -Clinical Director/Coordination for
Employer, Life & Health, Personal and Casualty lnsurance

Standard Life- Rehabilitation Consultant
Chiropractor- Healing Hands Family Chiropractic and
Massage
Rehabilitation Consultant, Standard Life Assurance

Owner and Operator for Vail Health Solutions

Consultant Numerous Assessment Centres

Services provided:

MSK Evaluator, providing treatment recommendations
and follow-up assessments.
Disability Case Management for clients with various
ailments with the goal of RTW

Facilitate lntegration into the Employment Market for
Veterans of th-e Canadian Armed Forces within the
confines of a policy
Conducted Vocational Evaluations for various insurers
and med-legal
Chaired Disciplinary Hearings at the College of
Chiropractors of Ontario
Met with clients and management regarding SLA's and
KPI'S
File and team management from referral to report.
Ensuring consensus and quality of reports. Engaging
with assissors and adjusters to ensure defensible
products and qualitY.

Management of LTD/STD claims with goals of return
to work
Ensuring proper rehabilitation of claims to minimize
absencdtb return clients to gainful employment
Meetings and other forms of communication with
claimaits/employers for assessments and pre-return
to work meetings
ln-Home Functional assessments
Functional assessments

present
2020
2016
2015
2017
2014-2016

2014- 2016
2003-present
2013-2014
2012-2014
2000-2010

a

a

O

a

o

a

a

o

a

a

a

a



a Medical/rehabilitation assessments to determ ine
whether.proposed treatment plans in dispute are
reasonable and necessary
Preparation of DAC assessment plans for medical/
rehabilitation, disability and attendant care DACs
Met with employers and employees to evaluate
worksite, pre-disability physlcal demands and possible
alternatives to establish giaduated return to w6rk
Administering PGAP

107

a

a

O

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE

Trillium Health Partner
Assessment of clients to provide treatment recommendations.

Healing Hands Family Chiropractic 2003
Private practice. Assessed and treated patients, utilizing chiropractic,
acupuncture,
massage and exercise/ rehabilitation.

2021

2000

Headache Treatment Centre
Private pr?gt-r.c.q. Assessed and treated chronic pain patients,
l'naly post-MVA. Associate of general practition6r spbcializing
in chronic pain management.

TEACH]NG AND RESEARCH

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

Assistant Lecturer for lntact lnsurance for Brain Trauma; Chronic pain and
lndependent Medical Assessments
Facilitator on behalf of Allerg.an for medical doctors reviewing anatomy at
the University of Toronto in the Gross Anatomy Labs
Teaching Assistant, second year orthooaedics course at canadian
College of Naturopathic Medicine
Facilitator for cE 2022,3303 and Ac 3305 at canadian Memorial
Chiropractic College

{urisprudence Project supervisor at canadian Memoriar chiropractic
College
Technique Tqtor for second and third year course at canadian Memorial
Chiropractic College
Research for Footmaxx on maximum forefoot pressure reduction with the
use of orthotic therapy

LECTURES

"The Effects of over-Pronation on the Musculoskeletal system", Toronto and
Sault St. Marie
Physician Education, Oshawa Medical Clinic
E onomics and Posture, Oshawa Medical Clinic



108
MEMBERSHIPS

Member of the Disciplinary Committee for the College of Chiropractors of Ontario
Peer Assessor for College of Chiropractors of Ontario, QA Committee
Ontario Chiropractic Association
Canadian Ch i ropractic Association
Chiropractic Protective Association
Clinical Services Group, Footmaxx
College of Vocational Rehabilitation Professionals
Vocational Rehab Associations



Rose Bustria ITEM 6.6

Colleen Pattrick <colleenpattrick3l 7@gmail.com>

Tuesday, March 30,20212:13 PM

Jo-Ann Willson
Rose Bustria; President

Re: NonCouncil committee Member Positions on cco effective April

15,2021

109
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Good morning:

Thank you very much for the notice in advance. I have given my letter of intent and application and put

it on my outlook calendar . I look forwards to the Zoom coordinated

Best Regards

Colleen

on Tue, Mar 30, 202L al 12:04 PM Jo-Ann Willson <ipwillson@CCo.On.ca> wrote:

This communication is being forwarded to all noncouncil committee members on CCO committees' I

know this has been an extraordinary year for a number of reasons, and that some committees have not

actually met in view of CCO's focus on essential functions during the pandemic. However, would each

of you please advise whether you would or would not be interested in serving in the same (or a

different) capacity as a noncouncil committee member for the internal elections currently scheduled

for April t5,2OZL.Thank you very much, and thank you all for your perseverance and commitment

during a challenging time for everyone.

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W'' LL.B

Registrar & General Counsel

*Note Address Change

College of Ghiropractors of Ontario

59 Hayden St., Suite 800

Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7

Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext.111

Fax: (416) 925-9610

' E-mail:ipwillson@cco.on.ca

'

Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

1



CONFI DENTIALITY WARNING:

This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the person(s) named above. Anydistribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have received this e-miit in enor, please noliff me immediately by reply
and delete all copies including any attachmenls without reading it or making a copy. Thank you.

other
e-mail

110

2



Rose Bustria
111

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Colleen Pattrick <colleenpattrick3l 7@gmail.com>

Tuesday, March 9,2021 1:01 PM

Jo-Ann Willson; Rose Bustria

application for Non-Council Committtee Candidate

CCO ABRIDGED CURRICULUM VITA 2021 (1).docx; CCO Re disciplines

comittee letter of intent 2021.docx;CCO Non-council application

20201 p 1312jpg; CCO Non-council application 20201 p 2 313jpg

Attention Ms Willson

Please find attached my 2 pager application for my undertaking to the CCO Registrar for a Non-Council

Committee Candidate along with my letter of intent and abbreviated Curriculum Vitae.

Please contact me in the future with Zoom details for the above interview .

Best Regards

Colleen Pattrick, D.C.



1122021

CONTACT INFORMATION:

Dr. Colleen Pattrick, D.C.,
Address:561 HullCt, Burlington ON, L7N 3E1
Phone: 905-637-8036

EDUCATION:

Cell: 905-541-7878
Email: colleenpattrick3l 7@gmail.com

. Fellow in Chiropractic Orthopedics, 2004, N.U.H.S

. Doctor of Ghiropractic, 1975, C.M.C.C.

LICENSING
r College of Chiropractors of Ontario Registration #1 151 retired status

EMPLOYMENT

Owner, Burlington Central Chiropractic Oct. 1975- Aug. 2018
r Practitioner and owner of chiropractic clinic for 43 years.
. Responsible for overseeing all clinical and business operations of the clinic.
. Managed front desk staff and registered massage therapists.
. Received numerous Burlington Post Readers Choice awards for best chiropractor or clinic yearly

from 2009-2013.

VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

r Disciplinary Committee, College of Chiropractors of Ontario May 2018- present

. Member of Board of Directors, College of Chiropractic Orthopedic Specialists of Canada
20"t5-2018

. Riding Designate for Political Advocacy (locaD for the Ontario Chiropractic Association
1999-2017

. Pan Am Games Medical Practitioner and First Responder, CIBC Hamilton Soccer Tim Horton
Stadium and various practice venues July 2015

r Canadian National Track Championship, Medical Practitioner and First Responder, Milton
Velodrome Jan.2015

. Ontario Summer Game Triathlon, Medical Volunteer, Professor's Lake, Brampton
4u9.2012

r Canadian Chiropractic Association Ambassador 2010-2015

. Participated in RAND research project on low back pain epidemiology 1995

CERTIFICATIONS:

a

a

a

Red Cross Professional First Aid Certificate

Bioflex Laser Certification Course

lndependent Chiropractic Evaluations Course, C.M.C.C.

College of Chiropractic Orthopedic Specialists (Canada)

2017

2010

2006

2004

AWARDS

. Burlington Post Reade/s Choice Award, Best Chiropractor, and clinic

. Ontario Chiropractic Association, Lloyd W Taylor Award for Political Action
2009-201 3

2010

I



College of Chiropractors of Ontario

902-130 Bloor St W,

Toronto ON

MsS 1N5

113

March IO,2O2L,

Re: No n-Council mmittee Positions on Committees

Per: Discipline Committee
Patient Relations Committee
Advertising Committee

Attention: Ms Jo-Ann Wilson, Registrar and General Counsel

please consider my application to the College of Chiropractors of Ontario for the position of a non-

council position on the College of Chiropractors of Ontario committee for one of the two non-elected

positions for the Disciplines Committee which I been honoured to serve in the last three years. I would

also like to extend my services and state an intention to also serve on one of the two positions for
patient Relations and the one position for the Advertising Committee. You will find attached my up to

date Curriculum Vitae.

I understand that under By-law 12 the council is required to take into account the location, type of

practice, professional qualifications, and skills, other qualifications and characteristics'

Location: I sold my practice of 43 years in August, 2018 and was released of any obligations with regards

to it at the end of September. Prior my practice location was in a clinic within a medical high-rise

complex in mid-town Burlington ontario a city of about 180,000 people.

Type of practice: The practice was evidence based with a focus on treatment of injuries and complex

musculo-skeletal problems, which lay within my scope of practice and advanced training for corrective

and rehabilitative care. There is also a family and maintenance/supportive care basis to my practice

portfolio, which also combined Chiropractic and Registered Massage Therapy'

Experience: I had been a licensed chiropractor for 43 years, and was in Burlington for more than 23

years in my last location. ln part of this period the clinic supported an associated Chiropractor, two

Registered Massage Therapists, and a staff of four trained Chiropractic Health Assistants for a period of

time. Between 1975 and 1993 I practiced in a smaller office. During this earlier period I also worked on

several occasions for another Chiropractor as a Locum Tenens in Hamilton Ontario. Currently I am not in

practice.

professionaleualifications: lnadditiontobeingaLicensedDoctorofChiropractic, lhavebeenanactive

Fellow in the College of Chiropractic Orthopedic Specialists of Canada (known as CCOS(C)) since

completing my American College of Chiropractic Orthopedics (ACCO) exams in 2004. Prior, I was on the

C.C.O.S. (C.) Board of Directors as a Member at Large. I relinquished this position to serve on the College

of Chiropractors of Ontario as a non-council member of the Disciplines Committee. I have been a non-

council member of the College of Chiropractors of Ontario Disciplines Committee for three years and



114
have attended both the basic and advanced training. I have experience in doing Zoom Discipline
hearings in the past year. I have performed lndependent Chiropractic Evaluations for both insurers and
the solicitors for injured parties.

I have represented the Ontario Chiropractic Association as a Riding Designate and the Canadian
Chiropractic Association as an Ambassador (a political advocate for Chiropractic) for both provincial and
federal level s of government and spoke to both the Members of Provincial Legislature and Members of
Parliament on Chiropractic platforms, including cabinet ministers. I was a recipient of the20lo Lloyd
Taylor Award for Political Advocacy. I was also involved in the Ontario Chiropractic Association
Outreach program.

For over 20 years, I have been involved in C.M.C.C. as an Assessor for their interview program for
prospective chiropractic students, and I have just completed my work in this regard for the current year
For this purpose, I was required to take a training course on rating applicants.

Other Qualifications: I am very passionate about Chiropractic and the benefits that are possible with
Chiropractic care. I believe that I have a high sense of moral and ethical standards. I am cognizant that
the mandate of the College of Chiropractors of Ontario is for the public interest. I feel that my
experience enables me to analyze patient treatment and practitioner ethical issues to perceive the root
cause of the problem and effective courses of remediation. Many years ago I was selected by the
Ontario Chiropractic Association to receive media and communications training.

I believe that my training and experience would be an asset for the positions of non-council member for
the College of Chiropractors of Ontario that I have expressed interest in: Disciplines Committee, Patient
Relations Committee and Advertising Committee.

Thank you for your consideration.

Yours Truly,

D r. Coll.e*,w ?attrk)l<r, D.C.,

Dr. Colleen Pattrick, D.C

Encl: Curriculum Vitae 2021



115

Unoentarnc
Cenoloare

TO THE CCO REEPTNER FROM NON-GOUI,ICIL COMMFTEE

College of Chiropractoo g Ongrio (CCO) March 2019
Thls document must U

Note to Candidates: rnitial lhe box/boxes that apply. Leave blank boxlboxes that do not apply andprovide an explgqation on a separate page.

kw,candidatefornon€ouncilcommitteemcmbgrundcrtaketothe

l. (a) My primary practiee of chlropractic is located in ontario
-oR-

(b) I am not engaged in the practice of chiropractic and my primary residence is
in Ontario

2. I am not:
o 

in dgfault ofpayments gfany fees prescribed by byJaw or any fine or order for costs to
CCO imposed by a CCO cornmittee or court of law.o in default in compreting and returning any form required by cco.r the subject ofa disciplinary or incapacity proceeding.

' an ernployee, oflficer or director ofany professional chiropractic association such that a
real or appaf,ent conflict of interest mg-arise, including but not limited t" U"i"g *
emproyee, officer or director of the AFC, ocA, ccA,tcpA, ccEB, cscE oithe
Council on Chiropractic Education (Canada) of the FilCr.

' an ofificer, director, or administrator of any chiropractic educational institution, including
but not limited to, CMCC and UQTR, ru"h thut a real or apparent conflict of interest
may arise.

r a member of the Council or of a committec of the college of any other healthprofession.

3' If applicable, I have attached to this undertaking a copy of all letters ofresignation
from my position as an employee, offrcer or director oiany professional chiropractic
association or an officer, director or administrator ofany chiropractic educatio'nal institution
such that a real or apparent conflict ofinterest may arise.

4' Ifapplicable, I have taken all reasonable and necessary steps to ensure I am not
reflected in any documents or on any websites as an employee, officer or director of any
professional chiropractic association or an officer, direcior or ud-irrirtuto, of any 

'.--J

chiropractic educational institution such that u rul or apparent conflict of interesimay arise.

OR
rK-l

r=t

I The effective date on which the candidate must noJ be an ernployee, officer or director of any professional
chiropractic association, or an officer, director or adminishatoi oi*j, ,iiir"pr""tic educational institution such that areal or apparent conflict of intercst may arise, is the date of app"iotu-;;;;;n{ouncil committee members.copies of relevant letters of resignafion must be filed wittr cbb, 

"lod;th the candidate', oo*io.tioo papers. Thecandidate should take all reasonable and necessary steps to enswe he/ihe is not reflected in any documents or on anywre!|ips as an employee,.officer or-director orany proiessiom cniropractlc Lsociation, or an ofificer, director oradministrator of any chiropractic educational in"titutioo, ru"h td;;;ioi appar"nt cotrIlict of int€rest may arise.



116
undertaking to the cco Registrar from Non-councir committee candidateVersion Date: March 2019

5. I undertake to maintain all confidentialiw within the appointrnentprocess. ffl
6. I have not: FVztr been disqualified from the councilpr a committee of the council in the previous three 

I /\ I

years.
r served on Council for nine consecutive years without a full three-year term passing sinceI last served on Council.
r been a member of the staffof the College at any time within tfre preceding tfuee years.

7 ' A finding of professional misconducg incompetence or incapacity has not been made against fXlme in the preceding three years.

I undertake to attend cco's Elections with council and orientation day on May r,2019.IfI am unable to at&end, t undertake to cail in via skype or an equivarent.

2

8.

9 I confirm I have reviewed my active personat and business communications, including those l=Tlon social media, and there is no current content that could embarrass cco or give cause toconsider that I am unabl,e or unwilling_to compry with cco's missiorr, vrsion, varues
sffategic objectives and by-laws, and the duty tobe fair and i.purtiui io all considerations.

10. [felected, I undertake to:
r review and comply with cco's code of conduct, cco rnternal policy I-015: policy

to Avoid Abuse, Neglect and Harassment and cco's mission, vision, values and
strategic objectives.

o review cco's orientation material and attend any relevant taining workshop.r participate in CCO's Peer and Practice Assessment Program within six months of
my election (if I have not already been peer assessed by that time).r qarticipate as a member of a discipline panel if selectej by the chair of the
Discipline Committee.

I I ' I confinn that if elected to Council, I have access to and agree to use the following
confidential e-mail address for any and alt CCO matters.

12.

t3

I confirm all the information in this undertaking is accurate, complete and tme.

I further undertake to advise the Registrar forthwith of any change in the above-noted
statements.

14. Iunderstand it is an actofprofessional to fail to comply with an underfaking
to the

x1

F
Ac,,,r L ).oLl

Date
--r--..-

?l q

Name
Fa

"ic K #1rr!LL



Rose Bustria ITEM 6.7

Mu rray Townsend < d rmtownsend@ mou ntforestchi ropractic.com >

Tuesday, March 30,2021 1:11 PM

Jo-Ann Willson
Rose Bustria; President
Re: NonCouncil Committee Member Positions on CCO effective April

15,2021

117
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

I remain interested in continuing as a non councilcommittee member. I would be pleased to continue

on the Discipline Committee, but would also be open to a position on another committee.

Thank you,

Murray Townsend

On Mar 30,2O2!, att2:O4 PM, Jo-Ann Willson <ipwillson@cco.on.ca> wrote

Good morning:

This communication is being forwarded to all noncouncil committee members on CCO

committees. I know this has been an extraordinary year for a number of reasons, and

that some committees have not actually met in view of CCO's focus on essential

functions during the pandemic. However, would each of you please advise whether you

would or would not be interested in serving in the same (or a different) capacity as a

noncouncil committee member for the internal elections currently scheduled for April

75,2021. Thank you very much, and thank you all for your perseverance and

commitment during a challenging time for everyone'

Jo-Ann l,Villson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B.

Registrar & General Counsel
*Note Address Change

College of Ghiropractons of Ontario
59 Hayden St., Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext.111
Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the person(s)

named above. Rny 6tnei CistriOution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have received this e-mail in

error, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail and delete all copies including any attachments without reading it or

making a copy. Thank you.

1



,ffi?
'o*l'"-lF

Dr. Murray Townsend B.Sc., D.C.

Dr. Michelle Gross B.Sc. (Hons.), D.C

Dr. Brianne O'Driscoll B.Sc., D.C.
Doctors of Chiropractic

cntRSiYilt'aTic
rel: 519.323.2960 rax: 519.323.4700

148 Main St S, Mount Forest, ON NOG 210

www. mo u ntforestch iropractic. com

118

To: College of Chiropractors of Ontario Council Members

Re: Non-Council Committee Positions on CCO Committees

Dear Members,

I wish to re-submit my name for a position as a non-council committee member. While I am very willing to be placed in a

position on any of the committees, I am very willing to continue as a non-council committee member within the Discipline

Committee.

I have been a member of the CCO since !997, and I have been practicing actively in Mount Forest with my wife, Dr.

Michelle Gross, for the past 21 years. We have enjoyed a strong relationship with our local health care providers, through

formal efforts beginning in 2004-2006 with a "Collaborative Practice Study Between Physicians and Chiropractors in a

primary Care Reform Setting" and our ongoing involvement in the Primary Care for Low Back Pain program with the

Ontario Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (since 2013). My personal efforts to further interprofessional care include a

certificate from the University of Toronto in 2011 for "Educating Health Professionals in lnterprofessional Care" '

My experience on the Discipline Committee included the first virtual Hearings in May 2020. This experience reconfirmed

my commitment to the CCO's mandate to ensure safe, professional and competent care at the hands of Ontario's

chiropractors.

I look forward to meeting with you, in whatever form is allowed, and being able to discuss the positive role that the CCO

plays in the care of Ontarians.

Sincerely,

Dr. Murray Townsend



Rose Bustria ITEM 6.8

Dr. Matt Tribe <dr.mtribe@gmail.com>

Tuesday, March 30,2021 12:07 PM

Jo-Ann Willson
Rose Bustria; President
Re: NonCouncil Committee Member Positions on CCO effective April

15,2021

119
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subiect:

Hello, I would be interested in continuing to serve on the discipline committee for the upcoming year

This has been a very productive year so far for the committee and I would like to continue in this

capacity.
Thank you !

Matt

Dr. Matt Tribe, BSc, DC (he/him)
Services provided:
Chiropractic I Acupuncture I Soft Tissue Therapy I Orthotics

Dynamic Movement Chiropractic and Health Centre
110 Anne St S, Unit 3, Barrie, L4N2E3
705-986-4582

Book online at: httos://dvnamicmovement.janeapp.com

www. DvnamicMovement.ca
Facebook and lnstagram @DynamicMovementChiro

On Mar 30,2O2I, al72:04 PM, Jo-Ann Willson <ipwillson@cco.on.ca> wrote:

Good morning:

This communication is being forwarded to all noncouncil committee members on CCO

committees. I know this has been an extraordinary year for a number of reasons, and

that some committees have not actually met in view of CCO's focus on essential

functions during the pandemic. However, would each of you please advise whether you

would or would not be interested in serving in the same (or a different) capacity as a

noncouncil committee member for the internal elections currently scheduled for April

L5,2O2t. Thank you very much, and thank you all for your perseverance and

commitment during a challenging time for everyone.

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B.
Registrar & General Counsel
xNote Address Change

College of Chiropractors of Ontario



59 Hayden St., Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (4'16) 922-6355 ext. 1 1 1

Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@cco.on.ca
Web Site: vvvw.cco.on.cil

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and iE intended only for the person(s)
named above. Any other distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have received this e-mail in
enor, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail and delete all copies including any attachments without reading it or
making a copy. Thank you.

r20

2



121
DR. MATT TRIBE, B.Sc, DC
14 Pods Lane, Oro Medonte, ON, LOL2LO

dr.mtribe@gmail.com
705-279-2858

OBJECTIVE
To continue as a contributing member of the College of Chiropractors of Ontario as a

non-council committee member for the Discipline committee

EDUCATION
Ganadian Memorial ChiroPractic Gollege 2O1O-2O14

Contem porary Medical Acupuncture at McMaster University February-June 201 4

University of waterloo BSc Hon Kinesiology co-op 2005-2010

WORK EXPERIENCE
Associate Ghiropractor, Priority Chi
. Providing chiropractic care to the g

ropractic & Wellness Aug 201 -present
eneral public through hands on manipulation

using Diversified, Thompson, and Activator techniques
. Soft tissue therapy through Graston and Manual Release Therapy
. Neurofunctional acupuncture provider
. Custom orthotics and exercise prescription

Associate Ghiropractor, Bear Creek Physiotherapy oct 2017-sept 2019
. providing chiropractic care as the only chiropractor in the clinic to the general

public thiough hands on manipulation using Diversified, Thompson, and Activator

techniques
. Soft tissue therapy through Graston and Manual Release Therapy
. Neurofunctional acupuncture provider
. Custom orthotics and exercise prescription

GERTIFICATIONS
Orthotic Group custom orthotic fitting
Gait Scan Analysis
Neu rofu ncti onal Acupu n ctu re- McM aster U n iversity

CPR-HCP
Certificate in MOOC Concussion- University of Calgary

OTHER

a

a

a

a

a

a Non-council member of CCO Patient Relations Committee
o MaY 2016-APril 2017

Non-council member of CCO Discipline Committee
o May 2017-Present

2 term Vice President of local BNI chapter (Business Networking lnternational)

a



122

u April 201S-April2017
. Peer-reviewed in April 2015
. Peer and Practice Assessment 2.0 October 2016

PERSONAL INTERESTS
. Mountain Bike racing - earned acknowledgement for 100km distance in 8

hour race 2 years in a row, top 10 finishes 6 years in a row
. Road biking - avid long distance rider
. Personal Fitness - constantly researching new fitness techniques and

workouts

REFERENCES
a Dr. Tim Lamon

Owner and operator of Priority Chiropractic Health and Wellness
705-726-0400



Rose Bustria ITEM 6.9

From: lan Quist <drianquist@Yahoo'ca >

Tuesday, March 30,20211:32 PM

Jo-Ann Willson
Rose Bustria; President

Re: NonCouncil committee Member Positions on cco effective April

15,2021

Good afternoon,
I would love another chance to be a noncouncil committee member. I would be happy to stay with my

current position, but I would also be happy to try something different if there is a position that needs to

be filled.
Thanks for the opportunity. Have a Breat day.

lan

Dr. lan J. Quist

on Mar 30,2O2!,atL2:O4 PM, Jo-Ann Willson <ipwillson@cCO.on.ca> wrote

Good morning:

This communication is being forwarded to all noncouncil committee members on CCO

committees. I know this has been an extraordinary year for a number of reasons, and

that some committees have not actually met in view of CCO's focus on essential

functions during the pandemic. However, would each of you please advise whether you

would or would not be interested in serving in the same (or a different) capacity as a

noncouncil committee member for the internal elections currently scheduled for April

t5,2)zl.Thank you very much, and thank you all for your perseverance and

commitment during a challenging time for everyone'

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W, LL.B.

Regishar & General Counsel
*Note Address Change

Gollege of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden St., Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext.111
Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

123
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
inis e-mait including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the person(s)

named above. nny 6tnei Cistrinution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited lf you have received this e-mail in

"irol 
ptear" notify me irr"J[iJry 6V r6iryL-mair and delete all copies including any attachments without reading it or

making a copy. Thank You.

1



(51e)270-4733
drianquist@ltahoo.ca

Objective: To attain a role as a Non-Council Committee Member with College of
Chiropractors of Ontario.

Education

2000 Northwestern College of Chiropractic
Doctor of Chiropractic
Minneapolis, Minnesota

L997 Guelph University
Bachelor of Science, Human Kinetics
Guelph, Ontario, Canada

t99r Barrie North Collegiate
Ontario Secondary School Diploma, Ontario Scholar
Barrie, Ontario, Canada

Professional Work Experience:

2000-Present Owner/Chiropractor
Lion's Head Chiropractic Clinic
Lion's Head, Ontario, Canada

7999-2000 Internship
Apple Valley Chiropractic with Dr. Mike Ameli
Minneapolis, Minnesota

Professional Affiliatio ns :

*Mentor for many Chiropractors, both locally and internationally
*Previous Member and past Chapter Captain of Chiropractic Awareness Council of
0ntario
*Previous Member of Ontario Chiropractic Association
*Previous 100 Year Lifestyle Licensed Affiliate
*Two-time recipient of The Family Practice Award of Excellence
*Participant at Dr, Eric Plasker's "Master Your Speaking Skills" Intensive

124



125
Volunteer ExPerience:

Lion's Club Member 2001-2007
Club SecretarY 2005-2007

Hockey Coach Lion's Head Minor Hockey - 2007-2009.

Memblr of Council at Lion's Head United Church 2007-2008

professional speaking Engagements and seminars:

*Personally delivered numerous Chiropractic Health Talks at Lion's Head

Chiropraciic Clinic, other businesses and corporations. Topics included:

100 Year Lifestyle Talk
How to Harness More DailY EnergY

The Un-Diet
Women's Wellness
Motivational Health Talks
Mother's Evening Out
Literacy Talk at Bruce Peninsula District School

Anatomy talk for Grade 12 Health class at Bruce Peninsula District School

Attended:

*Life vision seminar - chiropractic Masters with Dr. Mike Reid

*Pediatric Program - Dr' Liz Peacock-Anderson
*Parker Las Vegas - Parker College of Chiropractic
* Numerous CAC SPring Conferences
*parker seminars Toronto - Parker college of chiropractic
*LifeFORCE 1000 - Life UniversitY
*MCZ Tech Seminar - Dr' Steve Hoffman
*First Steps to Success - Dani fohnson
*New Beginnings - New Beginnings
*Numerous Warrior Chiropractic Programs
* Chiropractic Technique course - Dr' Peter Amlinger

Other Skills:

*Excellent communicator/listener
*Motivator
*Leader
*Positive Attitude
*Great organizational skills



126
Personal Interests:

*Enjoying time with my family
*lronman Triathlons
*Reading
*Podcasts
*Helping others live their best life!



Rose Bustria |TEM 6.10

Carolyn Wood < drcjwood@gmail.com >

Tuesday, March 30,20215:51 PM

Jo-Ann Willson; Rose Bustria

President
RE: NonCouncil committee Member Positions on cCo effective April

15,2021
CCO non-council committee membe(1).pdf

127

Sent:
To:
Cc:

From:

Attachments:

Subject:

Good Afternoon,
I would definitely be interested in serving in the same capacity on the Patient Relations Committee or

alternatively any of the other committee's as a non-council committee member'

l've attached a letter stating this interest.

Sincerely,
Dr Carolyn Wood

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

From: Jo-Ann Willson

Sent: March 30, 2O2t t2:O4 PM

To: Rose Bustria

Cc: President

Subject: NonCouncil Committee Member Positions on CCO effective April L5,2O2L

Good morning:

This communication is being forwarded to all noncouncil committee members on CCO committees. I

know this has been an extraordinary year for a number of reasons, and that some committees have not

actually met in view of CCO's focus on essential functions during the pandemic. However, would each of

you please advise whether you would or would not be interested in serving in the same (or a different)

capacity as a noncouncil committee member for the internal elections currently scheduled for April 15,

2021. Thank you very much, and thank you all for your perseverance and commitment during a

challenging time for everyone.

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL B.

Registrar & General Counsel
*Note Address Change

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden St., Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext. 1'11

Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the person(s) named above' Any other

distiiuution, copying-or dis"rosri"lr itrial! prohibited. tf you have received this e-mail in error, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail

and delete all copies including any aftachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you'

1



W
( Cttnron Chiropractic

,):11*-,1'"1""

128
I 60 Huron Street

PO llox -158

Clinton, O;r* N0ivl ll.0
T: -iI9-'182-'1'l8l
F: il9-482-3103

rcr\'$'.drcarolr,n\\'ood.conr

rtoodch iro@cablctr'.on.cr

Ms Jo-Ann Willson and CCO Council Members
The College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden Sreet, Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7

Dear Ms Willson and CCO Council Members,

I am writing this letter to express my continued interest in serving the public as a non-council
committee member at the College of Chiropractors of Ontario (CCO). I would be pleased ro serve in
the same capacity on the Patient Relations Committee, although my experience and skill sets are well
suited to work in a range of roles, so I would be happy to serve on any of the other CCO committees.

I spent 10 years as a Peer Assessor for the CCO. The CCO Quality Assurance (eA) committee
educated us well as Peer Assessors on the priority of protecting the public interest. i thoroughly
enjoyed my role and took very seriously the importance of working proactively with each *"-bu. to
help them comply with the standards, policies and guidelines ser Uy the CCo iouncil. In District 6, I
interacted with the entire range of diversiry in chiropractic practice and received positive feedback for
my efforts from both members and the QA committee. I believe this experience is a peerAssessor
demonstrated that I can be fair, impartial and unbiased in my views and conduct representing my
profession and the CCO.

I have been in private practice for over 30 years and own and operate a multi-disciplinary health care
facility. I have always been a member in good standing with the CCO and well regard"d by *y
classmates and colleagues. I was my CMCC class of 1990 Valedictorian, served ai president oi th.
Huron Bruce Chiropractic Society and was also an OCA MPP contact person for my riding of Huron
Bruce.

As a second generation chiropractor, my father Dr Ken Wood instilled in me the imponance of giving
back to the profession that has been so rewarding to be part of. t look forward to once again belng
given the opportunity to serve the public and our great profession as a non-council committee member.

Sincerely,

Dr J Wood



129

Curriculum Vitae

Dr. Carolyn J. Wood

CCO Registration # 2477

Clinton Chiropractic & Wellness Centre

150 Huron Street, P.O. Box 358

Clinton, ON NOM 110

Phone: 519-955-7004
Ema il : d rcjwood @gmail.com

Cli ntonCh i rop ractic.ca



130Dr. Carolyn J. Wood
Curriculum Vitae

Personal Data Name:

CCO Registration Number:

Address:

Dr. Carolyn J. Wood

2477

Clinton Chiropractic & Wellness Centre

160 Huron Street, P.O. Box 358

Clinton, ON NOM 110

Education
Post secondory/
Acodemic degrees

Year gronted

1985

1 990

University

University of Guelph

eanadian Memorial ehiropraetic eollege

Degree

B.A. Business

Doctor of Chiropractic

Certificates Yeor of
certification

2008

Certifying body

Thompson Technique seminars

Certificote

Thompson Techniques

Professional
History Dote Type of Practice

July 1990-present Multi DC office with a solo practice in
Clinton, ON

Role

Sole proprietor

Memberships &
Services Dote

June 1990

June 1990

June 1990

June 1990

April2000-2016

Jan 2007-2018

Oct 2016-2020

Oct 2019

Name of Professional Orgonization

College of Chiropractors of Ontario

Ontario Chiropractic Association

Canadian Chiropractic Association

Ca nadia n Chiropractic Protective Association

Ch iropractic Awareness Association

CCO Peer Assessor

Alliance for Chiropractic

Canadian National Alliance for Chiropractic

Service/Activity

Member (24771

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member



Dr. Carolyn J. Wood
Curriculum Vitae

131

Volunteer work:
Service to
Profession &
Community

Date

1990-present

L996-20L7

199s-2000

L996-2004

200L

2005

2006

2006

200L-20L2

2006-2013

20to-20L9

Nome of orgonization

Huron Perth Chiropractic Society

OCA MPP contact member

Huron Bruce Perth Epilepsy Society

Clinton Public School

Canada Summer Games - chiropractor

WO Synchronized Skating - chiropractor

Scott's Tournament of Hearts - chiropractor

Hands Across Borders (L month)

Clinton Skating Club

Central Huron Secondary School

Local church

Description

President 2004-2006

Meeting with MPP

Educational committee

Parent council

Volleyball & Swimming

Woodstock

Women's Curling

Jambiani, Tanzania

Board member

Parent council

Board member

Awards/
Recognition Year awarded

1990

Awarding body

CMCC Class of 1990

Award

Class Valedictorian



|TEM 6.11
Rose Bustria 132
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Jo-Ann Willson
Wednesday, April 7, 2021 11:18 AM

Rose Bustria

Fwd: Non-Council Position on ICRC

lntro letter and Professional Portfolio (CV) March 2021.docx

Council (Elections)

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL'B.

Registrar & General Counsel

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden St., Suite 800

Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7

Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext. 111

Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail : ipwillson @cco.on.ca
Web Site:www .on.ca

CONFIDENTIALITY WARN ING :

This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the

person(s) named above. Any other distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited' lf you have

received this e-mail in error, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail and delete all copies including

any attachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you'

Begin forwarded message:

From: Robbie Berman <drrjberma n@hotmail.com>

Date: April 7,2O2t at L1:16:36 AM EDT

To: Jo-Ann Willson <jpwillson@cco'on.ca>

Subject: Non-Council position on ICRC

After much thought, I have decided to forward my name for the position of non-

Council member on ICRC.

Attached is my'reasons why' letter followed by my professional portfolio for

Council's consideration.

Thank you for the oPPortunitY,

1

Dr. Robbie Berman



133

To CCO Council members,

I respectfully ask CCO Council to consider me for the position of non -Council member

to the lnquiry, Complaints, and Review Committee (ICRC).

Why I am good choice? I bring a balanced perspective having practiced in a variety

of c-hiropra-tic settings including multi-disciplinary clinics, gyms, rehabilitation facilities,

solo and multi-doctoi practices- ln 1999, I earned my specialist status in rehabilitation'

My multi-faceted chiropractic training allows me to truly understand and appreciate the

diversity within the profession. A balanced perspective is important'

What skill set do I bring? My thoroughness, my enhanced knowledge of CCO, and

my logical approach are-attributes that can assist the ICRC in serving the public

inierest. ICRC is a very active committee with a steep learning curve, so I believe my

sound understanding of the functions and mechanisms of CCO makes me a very

suitable selection to complement the skills of the Council members elected to ICRC'

What unique abilities do I add? I bring experience. The wisdom of being a past

Council member and the experiences I have encountered while performing my peer

assessor duties would add a valuable dimension to the ICRC. I have read and

thoroughly understand CCO's Standards of Practice, policies, and guidelines and their

relatioiship to the RHPA and the Chiropractic Act. I believe I have a good pulse on

the profession and comprehend the current health environment we find ourselves.

My promise if selected? I will come prepared, I will read the pertinent information,

and lwill participate in a meaningful way'

Thank you for your consideration

Respectfully Submitted,

Dr. Robbie Berman

p.S. Attached is my summarized professional portfolio and a supplementary page

detailing additional chiropractic training.

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario, 2016



@)
134

P norESStoNAL PonrFolto

Pnnr 1: PnoresstoNAl Pnonle / cunRrcuLum vmne

Pensotal Dlra

Name: Robbie Berman

CCO Registration #: 3026

Address: 145 Kingston Road East, Ajax Ontario Uf TJ4

Eoucnrroru

Post Secondary / Academic Degree(s)

Year Granted University / College

1991 University of Western Ontario

Degree / Diploma

B.Sc.

1 995 cMcc Doctor of Chiropractic

Specialties / Fellowships YearCompleted

n FCCS(C) - Fellow of the Cottege of Chiropractic Sciences (Canada)

! FCCR(C) - Fellow of the Chiropractic Coilege of Radiotogists
(Canada)

n FCCSS(C) - Fellow of the Coltege of Chiropractic Sports Sciences
(Canada)

n FCCO(C) - Fellow of the Cottege of Chiropractic Orthopaedic
Specialists (Canada)

d FCCRS(C)- Fellow of the Canadian Chiropractic Specialty College of
Physical and Occupational Rehabilitation (Canada)

1 999

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario, 2016



P rofessio na I Portfolio 2

135PnoressroNAL HrsroRY

Practice History and Description

Date (m/y)

Sept 95-Dec 98 Sports Medicine and Rehabilitation

Type of Practice (include location)
(e.9., solo/private practice, multiDC, multi
disciplinary, etc.)

Role
(e.9., sole proprietor,
associate, locum,
etc.)

multi disciplinary

June 96-Mar 97 MediFirst Health Clinic MD/DC practice

June 97-Dec 98 Extreme Fitness associate chiropractor

Mar 99-June 2002 Regain Health clinic director

Mar O3-June 16 Body & Mind Wellness Family Chiropractic

June 16-Dec 18 Unique Family Chiropractic

Jan 2019-present Ajax Family Chiropractic

owner/chiropractor

chiropractor

chiropractor

Awnnos/REcocNtnoN

YearAwarded

1 995

Awarding Body

cMcc

Award

John Wallace Award

2nd highest grade point 4th year

2009 &2012 cco Presidential award

2014 ocA Michael Brickman award-nominee

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario, 2016



Professional Portfol io 3

136
MeMaensHrP & SERvtcE

Names of professional organizations in which you hold current membership and
services/activities provided, including positions held (if applicable).

Date (m/y) Name of Professional Organization

1 995-present Ontario Chiropractic Association

Service/Activity Provided
or Position Held

PMP programming Comm.

1 995-present Canadian Ch iropractic Association

1 995-present College of Chiropractors of Ontario

2007-present Alliance for Chiropractic (AFC)

2004-2013 CCO Board of Directors Executive Committee

Ghair of Advertising

Chair of Registration

Chair of Quality Assurance

Bylaw Review Committee

201 7-present College of Chiropractors of Ontario Peer Assessor

VolunreeRWoRK: Senvtce ro PRoFEsstoN AND Gouuluury

Date (m/y) Name of Organization

Sept 05-Dec 07 Ajax Public Library

Description of Volunteer
Work Provided

Community health talks

Oct 10-Dec 20 Various Durham collecting and donation

of food & blanketsHomeless shelters

June 201 5 Pan Am games Core health team

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario, 2016

wheelchair tennisAug 2015 Para Pan Am games



Professional Portfolio 4

137

Advanced training

Fellow of the Chiropractic College of Rehabilitation Sciences (Canada) (FCCRS(c))1999

1997

Techniques

National Chiropractic Rehabilitation Registry (NCRR), Diplomate Status (DACRB)

Proficient in the practice of Diversified technique - core training CMCC

Stucky lntegrated methods- multiple seminar training by Joe Stucky
Thompson technique- Certified by Dr. Robert Jackson, advanced- Dr. Tom Michaels

Torque Release- Certified by Dr. Jay Holder
Educated by the McKenzie lnstitute, Part A(Lumbar) and Part B(Cervical/Thoracic) programs-

Dr. Gary Jacobs

Koren Specific Technique - Dr. Ted Koren training seminar
General knowledge and understanding of:

Activator, Gonstead, Chiropractic Biophysics, Network Spinal Analysis

inar TraininsTechnique Se

September 2020 CPR Traininq - Dr. Theresa Lisk
Februarv 2019 Thompson Technique, Drs. Mark Foullonq & Ryan French
February 2015 Advanced Thompson Technique, Dr. Tom Michaels
October 2014 Chiropractic Leadership Alliance, Dr. David Fletcher

Total Solution- lnterpretation of Thermoqraphv and SEMG
April - Sept
2012

Thompson Technique- 6 DVD training videos of the Philosophy, Art and
Science of Thompson Technique

Februarv 2012 X-rav review. Dr. Marshall Deltoff -York Peel
April 20l l X-rav review, Dr. Marshall Deltoff - Peterborouqh
Februarv 2008 Koren Specific Technique, Dr. Ted Koren
Januaw 2007 Parker Seminars Thompson Technique by Wayne Zemelka
Januarv 2006 Parker Seminars Network Spinal Analvsis - Don Epstein
April2006 Chiropractic Paediatrics, Dr. Elizabeth Anderson-Peacock
February 2004 Advanced Interpretation of Thermography and SEMG,

Dr. David Fletcher
Mav 2003 Torque Release, Dr. Jav Holder
September 2003 Torque Release, Dr. Susan Taylor
October 2002 Chiropractic Leadership Alliance, Patrick Gentempo

Total Solution- Intemretation of Thermoqraphy and SEMG
February 2000 Refinine the Art of Pediatric Chiropractic" Dr. Armand Rossi

November 1998 Chiropractic Pediatric Certification Prosram, Module 3
Februarv 1995 Thompson Terminal Point Seminars, Dr. Rob Jackson
October 1995 Thompson Terminal Point Seminars, Dr. Rob Jackson

November 1997 Thompson Terminal Point Seminars, Dr. Rob Jackson

April 1998 Thompson Terminal Point Seminars, Dr. Rob Jackson
1995 Motion Palpation Institute 52 Seminar(Cervical & Thoracic)
r993 Motion Palpation Institute Sl Seminar (Lumbar & Pelvis)

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario, 2016



Rose Bustria |TEM 6.12

Joel Friedman

Thursday, April 8, 2021 3:56 PM

Jo-Ann Willson; Rose Bustria

FW: Letter of lntent and CV for Non-Council Commitee Member
Tibor, Letter of lntent.pdf;Tibor CV.pdf

138
From:
Sent:
To:
Subiect:
Attachments:

Joel D. Friedman, BSc, LL.B

Deputy Registrar
College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden Street, Suite 800
Toronto, Ontario M4Y 0E7

Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext. 104

Toll Free: t-877 -577 -4772

Fax: (415) 925-9510
E-mail: ifriedman @cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

CONFI DENTIALITY WARN I NG :

This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the
person(s) named above. Any other distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have

received this e-mail in error, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail and delete all copies including
any attachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you.

From: Katherine Tibor <katherine@ba la ncedhealthcare.ca>
Sent: Thursday, April 8,2O2L 3:52 PM

To: Joel Friedman <JFriedman@cco.on.ca>; Jo-Ann Willson <jpwillson@cco.on.ca>
Subject: Letter of lntent and CV for Non-Council Commitee Member

Dear Ms. Willson and Mr. Friedman,

I hope this email finds you well

Attached is a letter of intent and CV to become a Non-Council Committee member. lf you require
additional information, please do not hesitate to let me know.

Sincerely,

Dr. Katherine Tibor

lf you have a scheduled dppointment at Balanced Heolth Care and are experiencinq anv svmptom that moy be
related to COVID-79, cancel vour appointment immediatelv, report to your nearest COVID-79 testing centre, and

continue with self-isolation until further notice,



Katherine Tibor, B.Sc.(Hons.), D.C

Balanced Health Care

51 Underhill Drive, Unit 4
Toronto, ON M3A 2J8

T: (415) 447-9222
F: (415) 447-9220
www.balancedhea lthcare.ca

139

This e-mail contains information that is confidentialto the intended recipient.
It may also contain information which is subject to legal privilege and is of legal copyright of the sender

lf you are not the intended recipient, you must not read, use, pass on or copy this message.

We also ask that you notify the sender by e-mail or telephone, should it be received in error, and

destroy the original message.

Thank you.

2



1r1.,1;ii,i illi lil,l; il il ilt,iir))iii
Iii; jl,,( i iiri r1l;: , \, ] r)i.t 

;

140
439 - 250 Cassandra Boulevard

Toronto, Ontario M3A 1Vl
(415) 4ss - 3638

katherine@bala ncedhea lthcare.ca

April8,2021

Ms. Jo-ann Willson & Mr. Joel Friedman

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden Street, Suite 800
Toronto, Ontario M4Y 0E7

Re.: Letter of Intent, Non-Council Committee Member

Dear Ms. Willson & Mr. Friedman,

Please accept this document as a letter of intent to become a Non-Council Committee Member with the
Advertising Committee with the College of Chiropractors of Ontario (CCO).

As a Peer Assessor and practicing chiropractor for nearly 15 years, I am aware of how practitioners have shifted

their methods of advertising. As more chiropractors advertise their services online and promote chiropractic
using social media, I know some chiropractors forget that the CCO's standards and policies still apply. I believe

that the Advertising Committee has a tough job to ensure the safety of the public as the world of technology
continues to change. lt is for this reason that I would like to join the Advertising Committee.

As stated above, I have been given the opportunity to serve the CCO and the public as a Peer Assessor within the

Quality Assurance Program. I have been able to educate and reinforce with its member the importance of
remaining current with the standards and policies of practice while remaining very detail-oriented and observant
during the assessment process. This includes reviewing a member's website, social media, or any print media.

Members have stated that their experience with me was a positive one, and that I am fair and courteous

throughout the assessment process.

Not only have I been exposed to different styles of chiropractic as Peer Assessor, but I have also practiced in

drastically different styles of chiropractic. I believe this would lend itself well to the Advertising Committee as I

am accepting of the whole chiropractic spectrum and would not show preference to any style of practice. The

key point is to always ensure the best interest of the public.

I believe you will find me to be a great team member, one who is willing to listen to others and participate fully.
I hope you can see that I am dedicated to the profession and would love the opportunity to continue serving the
CCO. I look forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely,

$+aurrrfnuW

Katherine Tibor, DC



141
439 - 250 Cassandra Boulevard

Toronto, Ontario M3A 1Vl
(4161 4ss - 3638

katherine@bala nced hea lthca re.ca

Conscientious and passionate evidence-based chiropractor who practices with a high degree of ethics. Excellent
communication skills that not only allow patients to understand their diagnosis and care plan, but also help in
educating the community regarding chiropractic care. Proven ability to work well in an interprofessional setting
and routinely updates skills to ensure optimal care is delivered to patients.

ll,iili\ ti ii ilri i ! ti l\l I ii ir irl(. ))ltii

tl .'.;

i' :1 ii1'( r)ir!;\:i',il iiillrillll-\,11

i ir rl I ( .,r\ j li{til\l

Geriatric Training

Pediatric Training

Doctor of Chiropractic

Bachelor of Science,
Honours

Geriatric Certificate Program, M cMaster U niversity

lnternational Chiropractic Pediatric Association

Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College

Human Biology, University of Toronto

Present

20LL-20t3

2002-2006

t998-2002

( r iii i1 r(i.l\i 1.1,

o Active Release Techniques@
r Graston Technique@
r Webster Techniqueo
o Standard First Aid with CPR-C

o Foot Biomechanics, Custom Orthotic Therapy, and Gait Analysis

I'iil()ili lt :;l)tl( )r\ll\ii l;:xlii li{ltrr}\1( :i

Peer Assessor College of Chiropractors of Onta rio, 2Ot6 - Present

Attend member's practice to evaluate his/her practice, recordkeeping skills, and knowledge of the
standards of practice set by the regulatory college
Closely examine patient files to ensure recordkeeping and billing practices are in line with scope of
practice and professional standards
Test and educate the member on their knowledge of the current regulations, standards, policies, and
guidelines

Collaborate with fellow Peer Assessors and the Quality Assurance Committee to enhance the peer

Assessment Program and provide constructive input regarding the current assessment protocols

a

a

a

a



142

Owner and Clinic Director Balanced Health Care, August 2009 - Present

o Devise and implement office procedures and protocols

o Maintain all aspects pertaining to hiring and performance management of staff, orientation and training

. Prepare/manage budget and inventory

. Foster community relationships by networking with neighbourhood organizations and businesses

o lmplement grassroots initiatives to promote chiropractic and complementary healthcare within the

community
o Develop, promote, and deliver health-related lectures and workshops at local churches, schools, and

community centres

Chiropractor Balanced Health Care, Augusl2OOT - Present

Unionville Centre for Health, April 2008 - August 2009

Chiropractic Wellness Centre, October 2005 - August 2007

o Conduct a full health history and thorough physical exam pertaining to a patient's injuries or health

concerns
r Devise and execute therapeutic treatment plans tailored toward each patient's needs including, but not

limited to: the use of physical modalities, soft tissue therapy, spinal manipulation/mobilization, and

rehabi litative exercises
r Provide one-on-one demonstration and supervision of patients' rehabilitative exercises

o Work as a team member to treat patients in an integrative complementary healthcare environment

o Educate the community through outreach events such as lectures and wellness fairs

o Mentor and inspire chiropractic students by allowing them to observe my practice

Deep Water Aquatherapist Unionville Centre for Health, April 2008 - August 2009

o Performed assessments to determine the patient's eligibility to participate in the deep water

aquatherapy program
o Guided a 45-minute aquatherapy class, both on deck and in the pool

r Revised and advanced patients' exercise programs by conducting periodic re-evaluations

Chiropractic Ambassador,
Educator, and Spokesperson

Ontario Chiropractic Association, 2OL2 - Present

Deliver presentations in an engaglng and lnteractive fashiun Lo a variety of audiences such as

neighbourhood communities and healthcare professionals. Groups include Revera lnc., Alzheimer

Society, Community Diabetes Education Network

Provide awareness and understanding of chiropractic, while fostering relationships with healthcare

providers at professional or community tradeshows

Participate in interviews, both on television and radio, to promote chiropractic care and good spinal

health

a

a

ll lt:ctilrl(lr l!,]l\rlx) l,ii(t:lilrlr\1 jl ,r\lil()i\1 [)({'l:}til]i\l(,ll

Tibor/2



143

Professional Expert, Body Worlds Exhibit Ontario Science Centre, 2009 - 2010
2005 - 2006

Led informal presentations on anatomical and physiological concepts

Provided exhibit interpretation and answered science-based questions to visitors

Ontario Science Centre, 1995 - 2008

o Presented formal science demonstrations to large groups
r lnteracted closely with visitors during workshops and/or while providing exhibit interpretation
o Developed and executed science-based workshops
r Conducted training sessions for science-based workshops and selected exhibit halls
o Supervised an intern affiliated with Ryerson University's Early Childhood Education Program, providing

her with feedback and support throughout her internship

Mentor Ontario Chiropractic Association, 2Ot4 -2019

Participated in three-hour discussion panel sessions to fourth-year chiropractic students to help guide

them in their professional careers

Welcomed students to observe my practice so they could obtain a better grasp of office and practice
procedu res

Led students in case study sessions and reviewed orthopedic testing to help them gain confidence in

diagnostic and practical skills

Facilitator University of Toronto, 2Ot4 - 2OL6

o Led smallgroup discussions for professionalstudents as part of the lnterprofessional Education Program
o Collaborated with other healthcare professionals and demonstrated to students the benefits of

communicating with other healthcare practitioners to achieve optimal patient care

Osteoporosis Canada -Toronto and Area Chapter,2008

o Provided the Chair with support regarding current events, issues, and programs

r Helped educate the surrounding community about osteoporosis through seminars, lectures, and events

o Assisted in the development and organization of that year's main fundraiser, The Bone China Tea

e Participated and facilitated in breakout sessions for future fundraising events

o College of Chiropractors of Ontario
o Ontario ChiropracticAssociation
o Canadian ChiropracticAssociation

a

a

Host, Visitor Experience Department

a

a

a

Vice Chair

l\l)l)ll ll llO[\{/\l l]X['ir]ii{ll i\l(.1'

l'l{(}i;i:S;l;11{)l\1/\11 l\{':{ {l trl\ il l{ )i\{:;

Tibor/3



Version date: 7APR2l

|TEM 6.13

PeeR Assesson Lrsr ns AT ApRtL 7,2021 144

District Assessor City Started Term

1

Dr. Harald Kreps Sundridge 2017

Dr. Peter Biamonte Huntsville 2018

Dr. Katie Fraser Timmins 2018

Dr. Marnie Thomson Sault Ste Marie 2018

Dr. Lorrie Megesi Sturgeon Falls 2018

2

Dr. Jann Thulien Nepean 2013

Dr. Victoria Clarke Manotick 2016

Dr. Joanne Lafreniere Nepean 2018

Dr. George Surko Ottawa 2018

Dr. Kris van der Veer Ottawa 2018

3

Dr. Grant Bjornson Bobcaygeon 2013

Dr. Janine Taylor Courtice 2016

Dr. Robbie Berman Whitbv 2017

Dr. Tim Lamon Barrie 2017

4

Dr. Biljana Durickovic Toronto 2013

Dr. Jim Haase North York 2013

Dr. Brian Dower Toronto 2016

Dr. Pierre Ramlall Markham 2016

Dr. Katherine Tibor Toronto 2016

Dr. Stephanie Kim Toronto 2017

Dr. Trevor Morrison Newmarket 2017

Dr. Kelly Ramsay Woodbridge 2017

5

Dr. Lezlee Detzler Milton 2013

Dr. Michael Kennedy Brampton 2013

Dr. David Hominuk Smithville 2016

Dr. Jenna MacFarlane Vineland 2017

Dr. Marlene Turner Milton 2016

Dr. Phil Lemire Waterloo 2017



Peen Assesson Ltsr ns ar MIY 7 ,2019 2

r45
6

Dr. Michelle Campbell London 2018

Dr. Brendan Carney Killian Sarnia 2018

Dr. Dean Cartwright Mitchell 2018

Dr. Sarah Dale Tecumseh 2018

Dr. Peter Fonti London 2018


	Electronic Public Information Package For

